CITY OF ALBION
CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA

Meetings: First and Third Mondays — 7:00 p.m.

City Council Chambers ¢ Second Floor ¢ 112 West Cass Street ¢ Albion, Ml 49224

COUNCIL-MANAGER
GOVERNMENT

Council members and AGENDA

other officials normally in

attendance. COUNCIL MEETING

Joseph V. Domingo Monday, June 201 2016

Mayor

Maurice Barnes, Jr. . 7:00 P.M.

Council Member
1st Precinct

Lenn Reid PLEASE TURN OFF CELL PHONES DURING MEETING

Council Member
2nd Precinct

. CALLTO ORDER

Garrett Brown
Council Member

3 Precinct ll.  MOMENT OF SILENCE TO BE OBSERVED

Rebecca Decker

Council Member . PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4th Precinct

Cheryl Krause IV. ROLL CALL

Council Member
5th Precinct

V. MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBER’S COMMENTS

Andrew French

Mayor Pro Tem VI. PUBLIC HEARING

Council Member
6t Precinct

A. Set 2016 Millage Rates
B. Team One Plastics Inc., Application for Industrial Facilities Tax
Exemption Certificate for a New Facility

Sheryl L. Mitchell
City Manager

The Harkness Law Firm
Atty Cullen Harkness

Y VIl. PRESENTATIONS
Jill Domingo

City Clerk A. Annual Audit Presentation-Abraham & Gaffney

B. Albion District Library Update-Cindy Stanczak

NOTICE FOR PERSONS WITH
HEARING IMPAIR-MENTS ,
WHO REQUIRE THE USE OF A VIII. CITIZEN’S COMMENTS (Persons addressing the City Council shall limit their comments to

PORTABLE LISTENING DEVICE agenda items only and to no more than five (5) minutes. Proper decorum is required.)

Please contact the City
Clerk’s office at IX.  CONSENT CALENDAR (VV)

517.629.5535 and a listening (tems on Consent Calendar are voted on as one unit)
device will be provided

upon notification. If you o

require a signer, please R H H H _

notify City Hall at least five A. Approval Special Council Meeting Minutes-June 13, 2016
(5) days prior to the posted

meeting time X. ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL DISCUSSION

A. Request Approval for 2016 Residential Clean-up for Saturday, July
23, 2016 (VV)



CITY OF ALBION
CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA

Meetings: First and Third Mondays — 7:00 p.m.

City Council Chambers ¢ Second Floor ¢ 112 West Cass Street ¢ Albion, Ml 49224

B. Request Approval Resolution # 2016-36, To Set 2016 Tax Levy (RCV)

C. Request Approval Resolution # 2016-38, Resolution Approving
Application of Team One Plastics, Inc., for Industrial Facilities
Tax Exemption Certificate for a New Facility and Approval of
Agreement (RCV)

D. Request Approval Resolution # 2016-41, Approve the
Memorandum of Understanding between City of Albion and
Albion College for the Expansion of the Albion River Trail (RCV)

E. Request Approval Marshall-Albion Assessing Agreement (RCV)
(RCV)

F. Discussion/Approval of the Mutual Aid Agreement with Eaton
Rapids (RCV)

G. Request Approval Annual Audit from Abraham & Gaffney
H. Future Agenda Items
I. Motion to Excuse Absent Council Member(s)

X. CITIZENS COMMENTS (Persons addressing the City Council shall limit their comments to no
more than five (5) minutes. Proper decorum is required.)

Xl.  ADJOURN



VI.

VII.

VIII.

City of Albion
Special City Council Meeting
June 13, 2016

Call To Order

Mayor Domingo opened the regular session at 6:30 p.m.

Moment of Silence To Be Observed

Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call

Maurice Barnes (1), Lenn Reid (2), Rebecca Decker (4), Andrew French (6) and
Mayor Joe Domingo. Garrett Brown (3) via phone, arrived at 7:10 p.m. and

Cheryl Krause (5) was absent.

Staff Present: Sheryl Mitchell, City Manager; Cullen Harkness, City Attorney and
Jill Domingo, City Clerk.

Mayor & Council Member's Comments
No comments were received.

Citizen’s Comments

No comments were received.

Consent Calendar

A. Approval Study Session Minutes — June 6, 2016
B. Approval Regular Session Minutes-June 6, 2016

French moved, Decker supported, CARRIED, to approve the Consent
Calendar as presented. (6-0 vv)

Items for Individual Discussion

A. Discussion/Approval Resolution # 2016-35, Continued Funding for Albion-
Marshall-Connector for Remainder of 2016 (RCV)

Comments were received from Council Members Barnes, Reid, Brown,
Decker and French; City Manager Mitchell: City Attorney Harkness and Mayor
Domingo.



French moved, Decker supported, CARRIED, to approve the Resolution #
2016-35, Continued Funding for Albion-Marshall Connector for Remainder of
2016. (4-2 rcv) (Barnes and Brown dissenting).

. Request Approval Resolution #2016-39, Agreement with Albion-Marshall

Connector (RCV)

French moved, Decker supported, CARRIED, to approve Resolution # 2016-
39, Agreement with Albion-Marshall Connector as presented. (4-2 rcv)
(Barnes and Brown dissenting).

. Future Agenda ltems

Council Member Brown asked when the RFP for single haulers would be on
the agenda for Council approval.

City Manager Mitchell stated it would be on the July 5™, 2016 agenda.

Additional comments were received from Council Member French and Mayor
Domingo.

. Motion to Excuse Absent Council Member (s) (VV)

French moved, Barnes supported, CARRIED, to Excuse Council Member
Krause. (6-0, wv)

Citizen’s Comments

Comments were received from Dawn Smith, 1415 Cooper Street who thanked
the Council for approving the Albion-Marshall Connector service.

Adjournment

Barnes moved, French supported, CARRIED, to adjourn special session. (6-0

Mayor Domingo adjourned the meeting at 7:46 p.m.

Date Jill Domingo
City Clerk



CITY OF ALBION
2016 RESIDENTIAL CLEAN-UP
SATURDAY, JULY 23, 2016

9am. -3 p.m.

LOCATIONS FOR DISPOSAL

1. Ketchum Field - corner of North Street and N. Clark Street.
2. Harris Field - corner of W. Cass Street and Gale Street.

PROOF OF CITY RESIDENCY REQUIRED
ACCEPTABLE ITEMS:

e Appliances Certified Freon Removed. Doors must be removed.

¢ Latex Paint - must be made solid with sand or cat litter.

e Furniture.

* Loose trash must be boxed or in clear plastic bags.

e Limited to what two people can lift.

e A limited amount of building or demolition material.

» Material must be boxed or bundled with size no larger than 4 feet by 3 feet
by 2 feet.

» Tires without rims or wheels - Ketchum Field Location Only. Limited to
a maximum of 7 tires per load.

e No tractor tires, loader tires, semi or monster truck tires.
e Electronics - Ketchum Field Location Only,

UNACCEPTABLE ITEMS:

* Liquids or Hazardous Materials; including oil based paint
¢ Batteries, car parts or heavy iron

e Rocks, sand, concrete, rubble or dead animals

» Appliances containing Freon

e Garbage

* Brush, stumps, grass or leaves

e Large amount of Building or Demolition Materials

e Industrial or Commercial waste

e Loose trash.




Resolution #2016-36
To Set 2016 Tax Levy

History: The City Council of the City of Albion must determine the level of funding in the
General Operation Fund for the fiscal year 2016. The ad valorem taxable value of real and
personal property within the City of Albion as determined by the City Assessor is
$80,723,907. The City Council held a public hearing on June 20, 2016 to receive public
comment regarding the proposed tax levies, which would levy a general operating tax rate
at 11.9736 mills, a tax levy of 3.0000 mills for solid waste, levy a voted tax of 3.0000 mills
dedicated to street improvement, levy 1.5800 mills for water plant debt and levy a voted
tax of 1.5000 mills for recreation.

Council member , supported by Council member ,
moved to approve the following resolution.

Resolved: That the City Council of the City of Albion hereby sets the FY 2016 tax millage
as follows:

1. 11.9736 mills for General Fund operations, which will raise a total of
$966,555.77

2. 3.0000 mills for solid waste, which will raise a total of $242,171.72.

3. 1.5800 mills for Debt Service for General Obligation Bonds, which will raise a
total of $127,543.77.

4. 3.0000 mills for Street Improvements, which will raise a total of $242,171.72.

5. 1.5000 mills for Recreation operations, which will raise a total of $121,085.86.

| hereby certify that the above resolution was adopted on June 20, 2016 in a regular
session of the Albion City Council and this is a true copy of that resolution.

Ayes:

Nays:

Absent:

Jill Domingo, City Clerk

Sim\Resolutions\20131\2013-04 To Set 2013 Tax Levy



City of Albion
Notice of Public Hearing
On Annual Levy of Property Taxes

The Albion City Council will hold a public hearing on the proposed Millage levies for 2016.
The hearing will be held on Monday, June 20, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers,
2"d floor of City Hall, 112 W. Cass Street, Albion, Michigan.

2015 Millage Rates " Proposed 2016 Millage Rates

e 11.9736 mills for General Fund e 11.9736 mills for General Fund
Operation Operation

e 2.0000 mills for Solid Waste « 3.0000 mills for Solid Waste

¢ 1.5200 mills for Water Plant « 1.5800 mills for Water Plant |
Debt Debt

« 3.0000 mills for Street - « 3.0000 mills for Street
Improvements (voter Improvements (voter
approved May 2015 for § approved May 2015 for 5
years) years)

e 1.5000 mills for e 1.5000 mills for Recreation
Recreation (voter approved (voter approved May 2015 for
May 2015 for 3 years) 3 years)

If adopted, the proposed additional millage will increase operating revenues from
ad valorem property taxes 0.36% over such revenues generated by levies
permitted without holding a hearing. If the proposed additional millage rate
is not approved, the operating revenue will increase by -6.30% over the
preceding year's operating revenue.

The City of Albion has authority to levy the above millage amounts based on City Charter and
previous voter approval. The previously adopted (December 2015) City budget for 2016 is
based upon the above Millage levies.

Jill Domingo, City Clerk

2016 Property Tax Levy



2016 Debt Service
Millage Rate Required

2016 Proposed Taxable Value 80,723,907

City Operating - Gen Fund 11.9736 966,555.77
Streets Voted Operating 3.0000 242,171.72
Recreation Voted Operating 1.5000 121,085.86
Solid Waste Voted Operating 3.0000 242,171.72
Debt service - Extra Voted 1.5800 127,543.77

Total 21.0536 1,699,528.85



COUNTY CALHOUN Unit Total TV 2015 90,482,882
UNIT: ALBION CITY Unit Total TV 2016 80,723,907
YEAR: 2016

HEADLEE & MCL 211.34ROLLBACK COMPUTATIONS

SOURCE AND |PRIOR YEAR'S PERM| CURRENT CURRENT | TRUTH IN ASSESSING CURRENT
PURPOSE OF REDUCED or REDUCE[] MILLAGE PERM. or MAXIMUM
OPERATING ONLY NEWLY VOTED MILLAGE | REDUCTION REDUCED | TRUTH IN EQUALIZATION | ALLOWABLE
MILLAGE see MCL 211.34d(9) FRACTION MILLAGE * FRACTION MILLAGE RATE
Post debt & specials to L-4029. Last year's L-4029 L-4029 col. (6) L-4029 col. (7) L-4029 col. (8) L-4029 col. (9)
col. (7)
Charter Operating 14.9736 % 1.0000 = 11.9736 x 1.0000 = 11.9736
vvas the above millage approved since this Apni 3U7 Y = YES 11
Extra Voted Oper-Streets 3.0000 x 1.0000 = 3.0000 x 1.0000 = 3.0000
= VVas the above millage approved since this Aprl 307 Y = YES 11
Extra Voted Oper-Recres  1.5000 x 1.0000 = 1.5000 x 1.0000 = 1.5000
“VVas e above Millage approvea since tnis April 3uy Y = YES 11
PA 298 of 1917 ORer-Solid V  3.0000 X 1.0000 = 3.0000 x 1.0000 = 3.0000
mis Aprit U Y = YES 11
X 1.0000 = 0.0000 x 1.0000 = 0.0000
—_yvas the above millage approved since tnis April au? Y = YEo
X 1.0000 = 0.0000 x 1.0000 = 0.0000
VVES LI dUUVE THNdYE dppiuved sice uns Apin aus 1 = TED
Total of newly voted & last 19.4736 19.4736
year's perm reduced millage. 2016 MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE OPERATING
MILLAGE UNDER HEADLEE & MCL 211.34 = 19.4736

NQTE: The only way to levy more than your maximum millage due to the Headlee rollback is to have voters approve additional millage.
If you plan to levy the Base Tax Rate or less, you do not need to hold a Truth in Taxation Hearing.

TRUTH IN TAXATION COMPUTATIONS

2016 BASE TAX RATE FRACTION: (from L-4034) 1.0603 (1)

2015 OPERATING MILLAGE RATE: (actually levied) )

2016 BASE TAX RATE: (w/out hearing) 19.4028 (1) x(2) = (3)
2016 MAX. ALLOWABLE OPERATING MILLAGE RATE: 19.4736  (from above) = (4)
MINUS 2016 BASE TAX RATE: (B.T.R) 19.4028 (3) = (5)
MILLAGE INCREASE: (with a hearing) 0.0708 (4)- (5) = (6) or
If you plan to levy more than the B.T.R. but less than the Max. Allowable, enter the amount here. (7) - (5} = (6)
MILLAGE INCREASE 0.0708

2016 BASE TAX RATE 19.4028 = 0.36%

MILLAGE INCREASE FROM HEARING*

2016 TV x .001 x MILLAGE INCREASE = $ 5,715 R
REVENUE INCREASE FROM HEARING
(_2016 TV x 2016 BASE RATE) -1 1,566,270
(2015 TV x 2015 ACTUAL OPER RATE) = 1,671,545 = -6.30%

2016 REVENUE INCREASE WITHOUT HEARING

*Must be published in notice of public hearing on increasing property taxes. Your current year's millage cannot exceed your maximum under Truth in Taxation

unless authorized by the governing body at the hearing. Your current year's millage cannot exceed your Headlee maximum without a millage election.

6/1/2016



ALBION CITY

TRUTH IN TAXATION REVENUE GAIN CALCULATION

TRUTH IN
PURPOSE AND HEADLEE MILLAGE GAIN UNIT'S TAXATION
SOURCE OF MAXIMUM  WITH TRUTH TAXABLE REVENUE
MILLAGE AMOUNT IN TAXATION VALUE GAINED
Charter Operating 11.9736 0.0435 «x 80,723,907 $ 3,511
Extra Voted Oper-Streets  3.0000 0.0109 x 80,723,907 $ 880
Extra Voted Oper-Recres  1.5000 0.0055 «x 80,723,907 $ 444
PA 298 of 1917 Oper-SolidV  3.0000 0.0109 «x 80,723,907 $ 880
" ) 0.0000 0.0000 x $ -
) ) 0.0000 0.0000 x $ -
19.4736 0.0708 $ 5,715
BALANCES BALANCES
0.0708 $ 5715
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE MILLAGES WI'i'HOUT
TRUTH IN TAXATION HEARING
MAXIMUM MAXIMUM
PURPOSE AND HEADLEE MULTIPLIER MILLAGE REVENUE
SOURCE OF MAXIMUM WITHOUT WITHOUT WITHOUT
MILLAGE AMOUNT TR. IN TAX. TR. IN TAX. TR. IN TAX.
Charter Operating 11.9736 x 0.9963643 = 11.9301 $ 963,044
Extra Voted Oper-Streets  3.0000 x 0.9963643 = 2.9891 $ 241,292
Extra Voted Oper-Recres  1.5000 x 0.9963643 = 1.4945 $ 120,642
PA 298 of 1917 Oper-SolidV  3.0000 x 0.9963643 = 2.9891 $ 241,292
_ s 0.0000 x 0.9963643 = 0 $
_ _ 0.0000 x 0.9963643 = 0 $ -
TOTALS 19.4736 19.4028 $ 1,566,270
BALANCES BALANCES

19.4028

1,566,270

6/1/2016



INSTRUCTIONS TO NEWSPAPERS UNIT: ALBION CITY

The following notice is required by MCL Section 211.24e which provides:
1) The body of the notice must be setin 12 point type or larger.
2) The headline "Notice of Public Hearing on Increasing Property Taxes" must be set in
18 point type or larger.
3) The notice cannot be smaller than 8 column inches by 4 horizontal inches.
4) The notice cannot be placed in the portion of the newspaper reserved for legal notices
or classified advertising.

Notice of Public Hearing on Increasing Property Taxes

The of the ALBION CITY
name of governing boay name of taxing unit
will hold a public hearing on a proposed increase of 0.0708 mills in the operating tax

millage rate to be levied on property in 2016.

The hearing will be held on , at

day date Time a.m./p.m.

at

1
prace auuiess

The date and location of the meeting to take action on the proposed additional millage will
be announced at this public meeting.

If adopted, the proposed additional millage will increase operating revenues from
ad valorem property taxes ~ 0.36% over such revenues generated by levies permitted

without holding a hearing. If the proposed additional millage rate is not approved, the
operating revenue will increase by -6.30% over the preceding year's operating revenue.

The taxing unit publishing this notice, and identified below, has complete authority to
establish the number of mills to be levied from within its authorized millage rate.

This notice is published by:
ALBION CITY

name of taxing unit

street address

city, state, zip

phone

6/1/2016



TRUTH IN TAXATION NOTICE
INSTRUCTIONS TO LOCAL GOVERNMENTS

This notice is not required if the local taxing unit complies with section 16 of the
Uniform Budgeting and Accounting Act, PA 2 of 1968 as amended, being section
141.436 of the Michigan Compiled Laws. If a local taxing unit does not comply with
section 16 of the Uniform Budgeting and Accounting Act, the following instructions still
apply.

MCL, Section 211.24e requires that notice of a public hearing be published by a local

taxing unit which proposes to increase operating tax levies over the maximum amount
allowed to be levied without a hearing. Notice may be published alone or included with
the notice of public hearing on a unit's budget held pursuant to MCL, Section 141.412.
The preceding model notice fulfills the requirements under MCL, Section 211.24e. It can

be completed with all the information provided and forwarded to the appropriate news-
paper for publication.

Other pertinent information can be included in the notice. This sample notice form meets mini-
mum legal requirements.

In addition to publishing requirements, the notice must be posted at the principal office of the
taxing unit.

The notice must be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the taxing unit. Publi-
cation must occur six or more days before the public hearing.

The proposed additional millage rate must be established by a resolution adopted by the gov-
erning body of the taxing unit before it conducts the public hearing.

Not more than ten days after public hearing, a taxing unit may approve the levy of an additional

millage rate equal to or less than the proposed additional millage rate that was published and
on which a public hearing has been held.

6/1/2016



Minutes of a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Albion, held on June 20, 2016 at
the Council Chambers in City Hall, 112 W. Cass Street, at 7:00 p.m.

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

The following preamble and resolution were offered by _ and
supported by

Resolution 2016-38
Resolution Approving Application of Team One Plastics, Inc. for Industrial Facilities Tax
Exemption Certificate for a New Facility

WHEREAS, pursuant to P.A. 198 of 1974, M.C.L. 207.551 et seq., after duly noticed public
hearings held on December 16, 1991(lot# 5) and April 21, 2014 (lot# 6), this City Council by
resolution established Team 1 Plastics Industrial Development District; and

WHEREAS, Team 1 Plastics, Inc., has filed an application for an Industrial Facilities Tax
Exemption Certificate with respect to plant expansion and new machinery and equipment within
the Team 1 Plastics Industrial Development District; and

WHEREAS, before acting on said application, the City Council held a hearing on June 20, 2016,
at the Council Chambers, City Hall, 112 W. Cass Street, at 7:00 p.m., at which hearing the
applicant, the Assessor and a representative of the affected taxing units were given written notice
and were afforded an opportunity to be heard on said application; and

WHEREAS, construction or installation of new machinery and equipment had not begun earlier
than six (6) months before May 13, 2016, the date of the acceptance of the application for the
Industrial Facilities Tax Exemption Certificate; and

WHEREAS, completion of the facility is calculated to and will at the time of issuance of the

certificate have the reasonable likelihood to retain, create or prevent the loss of employment in
the City of Albion; and

WHEREAS, the aggregate SEV of real and personal property exempt from ad valorem taxes
within the City of Albion, after granting this certificate, will not exceed 5% of an amount equal
to the sum of the SEV of the unit, plus the SEV of personal and real property thus exempted.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY the City Council of the City of Albion:

1. The City Council finds and determines that the granting of the Industrial Facilities Tax
Exemption Certificate considered together with the aggregate amount of certificates previously
granted and currently in force under Act No. 198 of the Public Acts of 1974 and Act No. 255 of



the Public Acts of 1978, shall not have the effect of substantially impeding the operation of the
City of Albion, or impairing the financial soundness of a taxing unit which levies ad valorem
property taxes in the City of Albion.

2. The application of Team 1 Plastics, Inc. for an Industrial Facilities Tax Exemption
Certificate with respect to plant expansion and new machinery and equipment, to be installed on
the following described parcel of real property situated within the Team 1 Plastics Industrial
Development District, to wit:

Lots No. 5 and 6 of Industrial Park Subdivision, according to plat thereof recorded in Liber 16 of
Plats on page 39 in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Calhoun County, Michigan, excepting
and reserving therefrom any and all oil, gas and mineral interests in and to said property.
Property Number 13-51-006-455-00 and 13-51-006-456-00

be and the same is hereby approved.

3. The Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate when issued shall be and remain in force
and effect for a period of Twelve (12) years after completion.

AYES:

NAYS:

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.

Jill Domingo
City Clerk

| hereby certify that the foregoing constitutes a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by

the City Council of the City of Albion, County of Calhoun, Michigan, at a regular meeting held
on June 20, 2016.

Jill Domingo
City Clerk



ALBION

ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION

309 N. SUPERIOR 5T.
P.O. BOX 725
ALBION, MICHIGAN
49224-0725
ph. (877) 696-8682

(517) 629-3926
fax (517) 629-3929

www.albionedc.org

June 2, 2016

Mayor Joe Domingo
Councilpersons
City of Albion

112 W. Cass Street
Albion, M| 49224

Dear Mayor Domingo and Council:

Enclosed for your consideration you will find an application from Team One
Plastics for an Industrial Facilities Tax Exemption Certificate, or tax
abatement. In accordance with the guidelines established by the City of
Albion and the Albion Economic Development Corporation, their request is for
a twelve year abatement.

You are being asked to approve a tax abatement which will assist Team One
in continuing to run a successful manufacturing company, to increase its
investment in Albion, and to continue to provide good jobs. Team One is
actively engaged not only in running its business but also in supporting the
community through the investment of time and financial support to local
nonprofits and projects.

Tax abatements are a major tool in meeting Council’s goal of encouraging and
supporting local economic development. In recognition of the importance of
Team One Plastics and industrial employers in general, the EDC/TIFA board
recommends unanimously to City Council that it approve the application for an
Industrial Facilities Tax Exemption Certificate.

Sincerely,

Margaret Meyer Sindt
President and CEO




ALBION ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION/
TAX INCREMENT AUTHORITY

BOARD MOTION
June 2, 2016

Moved: That the EDC/TIFA Board of Directors recommends to the Albion City Council that an
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate be granted to Team 1 Plastics, Inc.

Motion by:  Joyce Spicer
Support by:  Ray Campbell

AYES: 8
NAYS: 0



|| Albion Economic Development Corporation

CITY OF ALBION, MICHIGAN
GUIDELINES FOR TAX ABATEMENT UNDER PUBLIC ACT 198

OBJECTIVES

1

To develop objective guidelines for determination of length of tax exempt
certificate and eligibility.

2. To create a policy which encourages investment in new technology,
modernization of obsolete facilities, expansion of current facilities and
construction of new plants.

QUALIFICATIONS

All applicants applying for Industrial Facility Tax Exemptions shall comply with and meet
the following qualifications.

s

Applicants shall comply with all provisions of P.A. 198 of 1974 and all its
amendments.

Applicants shall have no delinquent property taxes.

Applicant or company representative shall be required to be present during a
scheduled public hearing for the granting of an Industrial Facility Tax Exemption.
If no representative is present, no action will be taken.

An exemption for personal property shall not exceed the useful life of the
personal property.

POST APPROVAL REQUIREMENTS

1.

Applicant who has been granted tax exemption shall be responsible for
submitting, no later than August 15th of each year the certificate is in force, a
status report to the City Assessor including the following information:

A. Number of jobs created expressed as full-time equivalents.
B. Number of jobs retained expressed as full-time equivalents.

Substantial progress towards employment goals as stated in the application and
presented by company officials shall be achieved each year. Failure to meet
employment goals in proportion to total planned employment or the business
plan over the duration of the certificate may result in a request for revocation of
the cerificate by City Council.

Albion EDC » 309 N. Superior St./ P.O, Box 725 Albion MI 49224-0725
PH. 5176293926 FAX 517+629+3929 INTERNET www.albionedc.org




6 Albion Economic Development Corporation

CITY OF ALBION, MICHIGAN
GUIDELINES FOR TAX ABATEMENT UNDER PUBLIC ACT 198

2, Applicants relocating outside of the City of Albion prior to expiration of the
exemption certificate shall be responsible for taxes exempted while the certificate was in
force.

3. Applicants relocating within the City of Albion prior to expiration of the exemption

certificate, upon review by City Council, may be responsible for taxes exempted
while the certificate was in force.

EVALUATION POINTS
An evaluation point system will be utilized for determination of eligibility and the length
of tax exempt certification under Public Act 198 of 1974 as amended. Companies

emerging from the Albion Business Incubator will be considered new to the city.

1 Cost of the project.

a. Under $100,000 0
b. $100,001 - $200,000 3
. $200,001 - $300,000 6
d. $300,001 - $400,000 9 /”\
e.  $400,001 - $500,000 12 _,L{/
f. Add 1 point per $500,000 of project cost over $500,000;
round up odd amounts

2 Number of jobs retained or projected to be created
a. 1-10 " ¢ 4 o
b. 11-20 /T
c. 21-30 P 12(\%/
d.  31-40 g /{éﬁ 16/ N
e. Add 1 point per every 10 jobs over 40 ’7 :

3. Status of company
a. Start-up 4 _
b. Less than three years in business 3 ,)
G. Three to five years in business 2 (E__\
d.  Overfive years in business G)

4, Financial impact to company
a. Increases total assets by 100% or greater 4
b. Increases total assets from 50% to 99% 3 ,
c. Increases total assets from 25% to 49% 2 CD
d. Increases total assets 24% or less @

Albion EDC = 309 N. Superior St./ P.O. Box 725 Alblon Ml 49224-0725
PH, 517+629¢3926 FAX 517+629:3929 INTERNET www.albionedc.org

b



| 6 l|Albion Economic Development Corporation

CITY OF ALBION, MICHIGAN
GUIDELINES FOR TAX ABATEMENT UNDER PUBLIC ACT 198

5. Miscellaneous (select all that apply)

a. Project is new for Albion /( y
b. Project is located within the areas described in the Albion J
Economic Development Land Use Plan @
'+ Project does not involve a move within the City (3
d. Company is graduating from the Albion Business Incubator 4
/45)
POINT AWARDS
Total Points Eligibility Years of Exemption
16 or less no none
17t019 yes 3
20to 22 yes 4
231025 yes 5
26 to 28 yes 6
29 to 31 yes v
32 t0 34 yes 8
3510 37 yes 9
38 t0 40 yes 10
41t043 yes 11
44 or more yes 1

Albion EDC » 309 N. Superior St./ P.O. Box 725 Albion MI 49224-0725
PH. 517+629+3926 FAX 517+629-3929 INTERNET www.albionedc.org




Michigan Department of Treasury
1012 (Rev. 04-14), Page 1 of 4

Application for Industrial Facilities Tax Exemption Certificate

|ssued under authority of Public Act 198 of 1874, as amended. Filing is mandatory.

INSTRUCTIONS: File the original and two copies of this form and the required attachments (three complete sets) with the clerk of the
local government unit. The State Tax Commission (STG) requires two complete sets (one original and one copy). One copy is retained
by the clerk. If you have any questions regarding the completion of this form, call (517) 373-3302.

To be completed by Clerk of Local Government Unit

Signature of Clerk | » Date Received by Local Unit
- . s
Ve A L rmengo | §-13-1¢
/Y J STC Use Only
» Application Number » Date Received by STC
APPLICANT INFORMATION
All boxes must be completed.
» 1a. Company Name (Applicant must ba the occupant/operator of the facility) ¥ 1b. Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) Code - Sec. 2{10) {4 or & Digit Code)
Team 1 Plastics Inc. 3089
¥ 1c. Facility Address (City, State, ZIP Gode) (real and/or personal property location) » 1d. Gity/Township/Village (indicate which) b 1e. County
927 Elliott Rd City of Albion Galhoun
» 2. Type of Approval Requested » 3a. School District where facility is located » 3b. School Gode
New (Sec. 2(5)) Transfer Albion ME0100300
. Speculative Building (Sec. 3(8)) Rehabilitation (Sec. 3(6)) [4. Amount of years requested for exemption (1-12 Years)
|| Research and Development (Sec. 2(10)) Increase/Amendment | 42

5. Per section 5, the application shall cantain or be accompanied by a general description of the facility and a general description of the proposed use of the facility, the general
nature and extent gt‘ the restoration, replacemaent, or construction lo be undertaken, a descriptive list of the equipment that will be part of the facility. Attach additional page(s) if
more room is needed.

Purpose: To increase size of existing plant and add equipment to accomodate sales growth

Purchase: 3500 sf building expansion and various production and support equipment as listed in the attached.

Ba. Cost of land and building improvements (excluding cost of land)
* Attach list of improvements and associated costs.
* Also attach a copy of building permit if project has already begun.

» $ 340,980
Real Property Cosls

6b. Cost of machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures > % 64862
* Attach itemized listing with month, day and year of beginning of installation, plus total Personal Property Costs
BC. TOAI PIOJECE GBS . .ooo.ouoiriiveasisesossuseremesessse e s ssss s bR » $1,005,852
* Round Costs to Nearest Dollar Total of Real & Personal Cosls

7. Indicate the time schedule for start and finish of construction and equipment installation. Projects must be completed within a two year period of the effective date of the
certificate unless otherwise approved by the STC,

Beai te (M/D En M/D
Real Property Improvements » 12/11/2015 6/1/16 » [X] Owned D Leased
Personal Property Improvements  » 11/22/2015 12/31/16 4 [E Owned |:| Leased

} B. Are State Education Taxes reduced or abated by the Michigan Economic Development Gorporation (MEDG)? If yes, applicant must attach a signed MEDG Letter of
Commitment to receive this exemption. D Yes I:l No

» 9. No. of existing jobs at this facility that will be retained as a result of this project. » 10. No. of new jobs at this facility expected to create within 2 years of completion.
68 i

11. Rehabilitation applications only: Complete a, b and ¢ of this section. You must attach the assessor's statement of SEV for the entire plant rehabilitation district and
obsolescence statement for property. The Taxable Value (TV) data below must be as of December 31 of the year prior to the rehabilitation.

a. TV of Real Property (Xeluding 1and) | _......ccovimimmsseesiiisisemsiciessmasssssses s s

b. TV of Personal Property (excluding inventary) ..
ETa 1IN N A BT PO PP ORFPYPPPPPOOPPPPPOPPPTYTTRT PR ERTI AL IR

» 12a. Check the type of District the facility is located in:
Industrial Development District D Plant Rehabilitation District

» 12b. Date district was established by local government unit (contact local unit) » 12¢. Is this application for a speculative building (Sec. 3(8))?

12/16/91 D Yes No




1012, Page 2 0f 4

APPLICANT CERTIFICATION - complete all boxes.

The undersigned, authorized officer of the company making this application certifies that, Lo tne besl of his/her knowledge, no infol_rmaﬁcn cont_ained
herein or in the attachments hereto is false in any way and that all are truly descriptive of the industrial property for which this application is being
submitted.

It is further certified that the undersigned is tamiliar with the provisions of P.A. 198 of 1974, as amended, being Sections 207.551 to 207.572, inclusive,
of the Michigan Compiled Laws; and to the best of his/her knowledge and belief, (s)he has complied or will be able to pomply with all of the .
requirements thereof which are prerequisite to the approval of the application by the local unit of government and the issuance of an Industrial Facilities
Exemption Certificate by the State Tax Commission.

13a. Preparer Name 13b. Telephone Number 13c. Fax Numbar 13d. E-mail Address _]
Gary Grigowski 517-584-8009 None GaryGrigowski@

14a. Name of Contact Person 14b. Telephone Number 14c. Fax Number 14d. E-mail Address
Gary Grigowski 517-584-8009 None Team1Plastics.com

» 15a. Name of Company Officer (No Autharized Agents)
Gary Grigowski, Vice President

15b. Sign. of C any ar. (No Authorized Agents) 15c, Fax Number 15d. Date
None 5/13/2016 J

P 158, Malﬁug»&ddress (Street, City, State, ZIP Code) 15f, Telephone Number 15q. E-mail Address
927 Elliott Rd 517-629-2178

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACTION & CERTIFICATION - complete all boxes.

Thie section must be completed by the clerk of the local governing unit before submitting application to the State Tax Commission. Check items on file
at the Local Unit and those included with the submittal.

16D, The State Tax Commission Requires the following documents be filad for an |
administratively complete application:

D Abatement Approved for ____ Yrs Real (1-12), _____Yrs Pers (1-12) Check or Indicate N/A if Not Applicable
After Completion [ Jyes [INo p 1. Original Application plus attachments, and one complste copy
2. Resolution establishing district

b 16. Action taken by local government unit

D Denied (Include Resolution Denying) =

3. Resolution approving/denying application.
| 4. Letter of Agreement (Signed by local unit licant
16a. Documents Required to be on file with the Local Unit — JEE - 9 en‘ (Signechy Ca, =i a.\pp JohN)
Check or Indicate N/A if Not Appllcable 5. Affidavit of Fees (Slgned by local unit and appllcant)
1. Notice to the public prior to hearing establishing a district. |6 Building Permit for real improvements if praject has already begun
2. Notice to taxing authorities of opportunity for a hearing. || 7. Equipment List with dates of beginning of installation
3. List of taxing authorities notified for district and application action. 8. Form 3222 (if applicable)
4. Lease Agreement showing applicants tax liability. D 9. Speculative building resolution and affidavits (if applicable)
16¢. LUCI Code 16d. School Code ]
17. Name of Local Government Body » 18. Date of Resolution Approving/Denying this Application

i

Attached hereto is an original application and all documents listed in 16b. | also certify that all documents listed in 16a are on file at the local
unit for inspection at any time, and that any leases show sufficient tax liability.
18b. Name of Clerk lwc. E-mail Address

[Tea. natgrec?u)\ s _ )
7. Qfmﬂq’ﬂ 1l /4- Deonian iadammj/) Qd}-u‘?ora!bémmi} 90

lerk's Mailing Address (Street, Gity, 3969. ZIP Code) J =

7112 w. Cpss §¢, Albion, Mx 49224

18a. Telephone Numbear 191, Fax Number
6I7-4LA7-786 Y 517-429-2236

State Tax Commission Rule Number 57: Complete applications approved by the local unit and received by the State Tax Commission by Qctober 31
each year will be acted upon by December 31. Applications received after October 31 may be acted upon in the following year.

Local Unit: Mail one original and one copy of the completed application and all required attachments to:

Michigan Department of Treasury
State Tax Commission

PO Box 30471

Lansing, MI 48909

(For guaranteed receipt by the STC, it is recommended that applications are sent by certified mail.)

STG USE ONLY \
» LUCI Code P Begin Date Real ¥ Begin Date Personal » End Date Real » End Date Personal J

4



Personal Property List

Description Vendor Amount
Electrical transformer / switches/ breaker panels Consumers/Alladin s 163,000
Sodick Press GL100 (P44) Plustech S 92,000
Sodick Press GL30 (P45) Plustech S 84,000
Sodik Press GL60 (P46) Plustech S 86,000
Crysta-Apex 57776 DCC - CMM Mitutoyo S 92,362
Dehumidifying Dryers Matsui $ 55,000
Material Handling Equipment Crown S 45,000
Tooling Benches / transport Zicks s 9,500
Part Extraction Robot Star/Yushin S 38,000
S 664,862




Team 1 Main Plant Expansion

Description [Wendor | aQty | Unit | Rate | Total |
Move in/out / General Conditions 1 each $ 2,850.00 S 2,850
Layout / Cleanup / Dumpster 1 each $ 3,250.00 $ 3,250
12 x 12 Opening into Existing Bldg 1 each $ 1,500.00 S 1,500
Steel Bldg Pkg w/ insulation & Partition Walls,
standing seam roof, liner panel A&S 1 each $51,620.00 S 51,620
Anchor Bolts 48 each S 7.00 S 336
Bollards 12 each $ 175.00 S 2,100
Perimeter Insulation 340 sq ft S 250 S 850
Lobby/Conf Room
Demo - 2man / 1 day 16 hrs S 65.00 S 1,040
Walls 70 linealft  § 25.00 S 1,750
Insulation 4" - Walls 510 sq ft S 0.60 S 306
Ceilings-insulation (includes machine shop) 1260 sq ft S 1.00 S 1,260
Drywall / Paint 1220 sq ft S 285 S 3,477
Ceilings 600 sq ft S 400 S 2,400
Windows 3 each S 60000 S 1,800
Flooring Allowance (includes base) 600 sq ft S 8.50 S 5,100
Machine Shop
Steel liner on sidewalls 410 sq ft S 465 S 1,907
Ceiling 772 sq ft S 3.35 S 2,586
8090 Dbl Door 1 each $ 3,250.00 $ 3,250
Walk door into existing shop 8 hrs S 65.00 S 520
Supervisor 120 hrs S 65.00 S 7,800
Misc / Contingencies S 3,500
SUBTOTAL S 99,602
Overhead & Insurance 4% S 3,984
SUBTOTAL S 103,586
Profit 340990 12% S 12,430
SUBTOTAL “§ 116,016
Subcontractor Total S 187,327
SUBTOTAL S 303,344
Winter Charges 5% S 15,167
Preliminary engineering/permits on PO#150114 S 9,950
RestrmCloset Change Order Total S 12,529
PROJECT TOTAL S 340,990



Subcontractors

| Description | Vendor | Qty | Unit | Rate | Total
Site Work Carr Bros 1 each $27,800.00 S 27,800
Demo Garbage Pier Allowance Carr Bros 1 each $ 1,800.00 S 1,800
Foundations

Pads 9 each 450 S 4,050

Walls 170 lineal ft 80 S 13,600
Floor 3500 sqg ft 375 S 13,125
Exterior Stoops (5x5) 2 each 325 § 650
Asphalt from south foundation wall (20x4) 1 each 545 S 545
Garbage pier pad (if needed) 1 each 420 $ 420
Erection DK 1 each 35324 S 35,324
Electrical Eagle 1 each 24900 S 24,900
HVAC AJAX 1 each 20960 S 20,960
Heat Tape Allowance 1 each 7500 S 7,500
Sprinkler System (painted) JAS 1 each 11950 §$ 11,950
Epoxy Paint Floor 2820 sq ft 55 14,100
SUBTOTAL $ 176,724

Sub management 6% S 10,603
TOTAL S 187,327



Unisex Restroom / Closet Change Order

Description | Vendor | Qty [ Unit | Rate | Total |

Walls 10 lineal ft S 25.00 S 250
Doors 2 each S 900.00 S 1,800
Drywall/Paint 160 sq ft 285 S 456
Blocking/Caulking/Misc 1 each 250 S 250
Fill in window 1 each 250 § 250
Plumbing (includes water heater/grab bars) Brooklyn 1 each 5000 S 5,000
Electrical (includes fan / venting) TBD 1 each 1000 S 1,000
Closet Misc - Drywall/Paint/Shelves/Etc 1 each 350 § 350
Paint red iron / old siding (maint & mach shop) 3740 sq ft 04 S 1,496
Insulation Ceiling 100 sq ft 18 100
SUBTOTAL S 10,952

Overhead & Insurance 4% S 438
SUBTOTAL S 11,3590

Profit 10% S 1,139
TOTAL S 12,529



Cornerstone Inspection Sves. Scheduling: (877) 721-9266 | BUILDING COM PERMIT |

107 S. Capitol Ave. P.O. Box 190 Office: (269) 729-9244  |PERMIT NO:  15-013020217
Athens, Ml 49011 Fax: (269) 729-92564 | DATEISSUE  12/11/2015
[TAX ID#: 5100645500
JOB ADDRESS:  ELLIOTT RD, 927 WORK CLASS: ALTER OR REPAIR OR REPLA
MUNICIPALITY:  ALBION CITY USE TYPE: COMMERCIAL OR INDUSTRIAL
LOCATION NOTES: TEAM ONE PLASTICS
APPLICANT (517) 629-0089
BASE: 86
: EOLLINS DESIGN & BUILD EOUIP EEE: s
| CLARKLARE M qa284 SUBTOTAL: $821.00
j ZONING FEE 0
; PERF BOND: 0
. OWNER (517) 629-2178 PLAN REVIEW: Y
. TEAM ONE PLASTICS ISSUE FEE: $965.00
| 927 ELLIOTTRD - - REMARKS - -
- ALBION MI 49224

ISSUED BY: ALBION CITY
ROLLED PRINTS

$71 Admin Fee, Application Fee & Plan Review Fee (if applicable) are Retained for Cancelled/Terminated Permits.

Cecup. Group F-1 Zeoning Permit  # ALBION 2015-0247 & 201 Rear

Occup. Load. Improve. Cost . From

Caonst. Type. 3B-UNPROTECTED BLD.DIME. NUMBER OF

Foundation . 42" FOOTINGS Length 35 Dwelling Units

Hzating Fuel Width, 100 Staries

Ownarship . Height 23 Parking Spaces

Lot Size . Tot.Proj.5q.Ft. 3500 Bedrcoms .

Szptc Permit  # LIVING AREA Full Baths

gl Permit # Tetal Bldg.Sq.Ft. Half Baths

Drveway Permit # Ground Floor Only S Air Cond.

Erosion Permit # SETBACKS Fin.Basmi

Fiood Plain - # Front Fireplace

Zoning District . L.Side BUILDING RESTRI
R.Side Code Edition 2012 MI BUILDING CODE

—THISISNOT A BILL--  Forinspections call the Toll Free number (877) 721-9266 24 hours a day

Applicant responsible to have job open to inspector on day inspection scheduled.
Only permit holder may request an inspection. This permit nor are the fees transferable.
rrpm s PERMIT EXPIRES 180 DAYS FROM ISSUE DATE - NO REFUNDS******#sssussxsns



Michigan Department of Treasury
3222 [Rev 6-0%)

Fiscal Statement (to be completed by local unit) :

|i’\pﬂ|r:é-‘11 Name—-7—

leryth O Pusic

YES NO
Is this project:
Real Property? [ L
Personal Property? : L
Both Real and Personal Property - New Facility? X []
Both Real and Personal Property - Rehabilitation Facility? [] []
Both New and Replacement Facility? ' L
Estimated Project Investment (not assessed value):
| Real Property Pefscr\_a: Property Tatal
$340,990.00 | 3664 862.00 i $1,005,852 00
YES NO REMARKS
1. A Has the proper local authority reviewed the X | | .
plan?
B. Is the project located in a certified industrial i -
park?
C. Is this a renovation or expansion of an existing _J | ]
building? B '
2 Will this project require improvement of your road | o
service? B o
3. Will this project require improvement of your | | X
sanitary sewer services?
4. Will this project require improvement of yourstorm | | X

sewer services?

5. WIll this project require improvement of your water
services?

6. Will this project require additional police
personnel, police equipment or a need for new
police building expansion?

7. Will this project reguire the need for additional fire
personnel, additional or specialized fire equipment ———|
or the need for a new fire building?

8. Will this project require other costs?
9. Are costs of infrastructure elements to be provided

through Local Development Finance Authority or |
Tax Increment Finance Authority Bonds?

If you answered yes to any of questions 2 through 8, the appropriate sections of the Supplement to Fiscal Statement form
must be completed and accompany the IFT application. Call (517) 373-3272 to obtain that form

LOCAL UNIT CERTIFICATION

This is to certify that the following has been provided as accurately as possible.

iName and Title of Local Governmantal Unit Official

-

YN
. C

O /1 MRNRIEER (4



AGREEMENT

This agreement entered into as of the day of ) , 2016, between the City of Albion,
a municipal corporation with an address of 112 W. Cass Street, Albion, Michigan 49224
(hereinafter referred to as the "City"), and_Team 1 Plastics Inc., 927 Elliot Road. Albion. Michigan
49224 (hereinafter referred to as the "Applicant"), an applicant for an Industrial Facilities Tax
(IFT) Abatement, pursuant to Act 198 of 1974, as amended, with respect to the following matters.

The Applicant has requested from the City that it approve a tax abatement application filed pursuant
to Act 198 of the Public Acts of 1974, as amended, wherein certain property taxes otherwise
payable by the Applicant would be reduced pursuant to the application so filed; and

The City has elected to require as a condition for granting any tax abatement to the Applicant that
this Agreement be entered into pursuant to Public Act 334 of the Public Acts of 1993, as amended,
which is an amendment to Act 198 of the Public Acts of 1974, as amended, and specifically
pursuant to Sec. 22 of such statute where it is now provided that new industrial facilities exemption
certificates shall not be approved by a local unit unless a written agreement is entered into between
the local unit and the applicant, and a copy thereof filed with the Department of Treasury of the
State of Michigan.

Now, therefore, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1 No later than the 10th day of January immediately following the second year after the
issuance date of the IFT, the company shall submit a letter to the municipality stating:

1 The number of new jobs promised in the IFT application within a two year period
and the actual number of new jobs created.

2, If IFT was granted on the basis of job retention, the number of employees at the time
of the application and the current number of employees.

24 If projection for creation or retention of jobs was not reached, give explanation.
4. The estimated project cost given in the application and the actual project cost.
5. [f actual project costs differ substantially from projected cost, give explanation.
2 The Company further agrees to submit a report regarding status of employment every two

years beginning two years after submission of the letter required in item 1, on or before
December 31. If employment has not been retained or exceeded the number given in the
application, an explanation for this shall be included. This report shall be submitted
beginning with the fourth year after the issuance date of the IFT.

The Company understands that if employment has not been retained or reached as stated in
the application or the construction and/or expansion project has not been completed or
expenditures made as described in the application, the governing body has the right to



reduce the term or revoke the [FT.

3. The Company agrees to remain within the municipality for the period of the IFT in order to
retain the benefits of the IFT unless permission for relocation is granted by the governing
body of the municipality.

The company further understands that if it chooses to leave the municipality without permission for
relocation prior to the end of the term of the IFT, the governing body as the right to recapture from
the Company up to and including the total amount of the taxes abated by the IFT.

By signatures of representatives of both the Company and the City below, it is understood that both
the Company's investment in the project and the City's investment through the granting of an IFT
are to encourage the economic growth of all. It is also acknowledged that certain economic
conditions can, at times, prohibit the maintenance of the Company's targeted status. It is understood
that if such conditions exist at the time of the designated Company reports, the City will carefully
evaluate the Company's situation, and will inform the Company if any action is considered in order
to give the Company an opportunity for correction.

This agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto and their successors and assigns.
In witness whereof, the parties hereto have executed this agreement as of the day and year first

above provided and a true copy thereof shall be filed with the Department of Treasury of the State
of Michigan pursuant to Public Act 334 of Public Acts of 1993.

WITNESSES
Team | Plastics Inc.
By:
Gary Grigowski, Vice President
Date:
WITNESSES ACKNOWLEDGED BY THE CITY OF ALBION
By:
Joe Domingo, Mayor
Date:
By: e

Jill Domingo, City Clerk

Date:



City of Albion

Assessing Department
112 West Cass Street - Albion,
Michigan 49224
(517) 629-7192 FAX (517) 628-2238

June 20, 2016

To: Albion City Council,

Currently, the State Equalized Value (SEV) of real and personal property exempt
from ad valorem taxes within the City of Albion as IFTs in relation to the total
sum of the SEV of the City of Albion is 2.29%. By adding the values provided

on the IFT application for real and personal property, the ratio would increase

to 3.23%.

Therefore, by granting the IFT being requested by Team One Plastics, the
aggregate SEV of real and personal property exempt from ad valorem taxes
within the City of Albion would not exceed the 5% recommended benchmark of
the total sum of the SEV of the City.

Respectfully submitted,

Ny A )
) Ly (Btre lrcteon

ulie Cain-Derouin
Assessor



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

RE: Public Hearing to grant an Industrial Facilities Tax Exemption Certificate- TEAM 1 PLASTICS

A Public Hearing will be held in the matter of granting an Industrial Facilities Tax Exemption Certificate.

Legal Description:

Lots 5 and 6 of the Industrial Park Subdivision

The Public Hearing is scheduled at the City Council session on Monday, June 20", 2016 at 7 p.m.

In the Albion City Council Chambers, 112 West Cass Street, Albion, Ml 49224.

This notice is offered under the provisions of Act 198 of 1974 and as subsequently amended.

Jill Domingo

City Clerk

City of Albion



2016 VALUES

CURRENTLY
IFT AD VALOREM
REAL 2,100,000 87,768,500
PERSONAL 349,500 19,069,600
2,449,500 / 106,838,100 2.29%
REQUESTED * values from application
IFT* AD VALOREM
REAL 340,990 87,768,500
PERSONAL 664,862 19,069,600
1,005,852 / 106,838,100 0.94%
PROPOSED TOTAL
IFT AD VALOREM
REAL 2,440,990 87,768,500
PERSONAL 1,014,362 19,069,600

3,455,352 / 106,838,100 3.23%




INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION APPLICATION
AFFIDAVIT OF FEES

We swear and alfirm by our signatures below that no payment of any kind in excess of the fee
allowed by PA 198 of 1974, as amended by PA 323 0of 1996, has been made or promised in
exchange for favorable consideration of an exemption certitication application.

City of Albion:

Applicant:

Team 1 Plastics Inc.

Company Name

Sl

Signed

Gary Grigowski

Print Name

Vice President
Tatle

6/8/16
Dated




Resolution #2016-41

To Approve the Memorandum of Understanding with Albion College for the River Trail
Expansion Project

Purpose and Finding: Currently the City is seeking to proceed with the River Trail
Expansion Project. Albion College has agreed to act as general contractor on the project
since they will be able to address the up-front costs associated with the project. The
project is subject to reimbursement through the Michigan Department of Natural
Resources, up to $294,000.00. The City will in turn reimburse Albion College pursuant to
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for expenses incurred during the project. The
River Trail Expansion Project will continue to enhance the resources available to the
public within the City of Albion.

Council Member moved, supported by Council Member
, to approve the following resolution.

RESOLVED, that the Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Albion and
Albion College for the River Trail Expansion Project, which is hereby incorporated by
reference, is hereby approved.

| hereby certify that the above resolution was adopted on June 20, 2016, in a
regular session of the Albion City Council, and this is a true copy of that resolution.

Ayes
Nays

Absent

Jill Domingo, Albion City Clerk



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

The City of Albion (“City”), located at 112 W. Cass St., Albion, Ml 49224, and Albion
College (“College”), located at 611 E. Porter St., Albion, Ml 49224, desire to enter into
an agreement to allow the College to act as general contractor for the Albion River Trail
Expansion Project. In furtherance of that goal, the parties herein hereby enter into an
agreement regarding the same with the following terms:

=1, The Parties understand that the Albion River Trail Expansion Project is eligible
for reimbursement from the Michigan Department of Natural Resources ("DNR")
under a separate agreement between the City and DNR;

2. The College will act as general contractor and incur the costs of the construction,
engineering, and all project-related expenses for the Albion River Trail Expansion
Project. In acting as general contractor, the College will assume any and all
responsibility for construction, engineering and coordination of the Albion River
Trail Expansion Project;

3. The College will submit all receipts as they relate to the Albion River Trail
Expansion Project to the City for Reimbursement within 30 days of incurring the
cost; -

4. In exchange for the College incurring the up-front costs of the Albion River Trail
Expansion Project, the City shall submit the receipts supplied by the College to
> DNR for reimbursement;

5. The City will reimburse the College for the expenses incurred with the funds
received from DNR. The parties understand that reimbursements are not to
exceed two-hundred ninety four thousand dollars ($294,000.00), or 74% of three-

i

hundred ninety eight thousand two-hundred dollars ($398,200.00);

6. This Agreement shall be construed under the laws of the State of Michigan. Any
and all claims, disputes, lawsuits, controversies, actions, or litigation arising out
of this agreement shall be brought in either the 10" District Court or the 377
Circuit Court for Calhoun County, Michigan.

7. The term of this agreement shall be from the date of signing through April 30,
2018,

8. This agreement may be terminated by either party with ?Et_Y__@Q),daVS written
notice to other party. it [ ot



2

10.

11

The College, its agents, employees and volunteers agree that they are not
employees of the City and are not entitled to receive salary, benefits or other
compensation of any type relative to any services provided to and/or on behalf of
the City. The College understands that it does not qualify for workers'
compensation benefits and shall not receive personal medical insurance benefits
for any injuries it may incur while acting as general contractor during the Albion
River Trail Expansion Project;

The College agrees to indemnify, release and hold harmless the City, together
with its elected and appointed board members, officials, employees, agents,
representatives, from any responsibility or liability for personal injury, including
death, and damage to or loss of property whatsoever, that may occur while the
College is performing under this agreement as general contractor. The College
further releases and holds harmless the City, together with its elected and
appointed board members, officials, employees, agents, representatives from
any liability or responsibility, including but not limited to that which may be due to
the actions or inactions of the City, while the College is engaging in activities
pursuant to this agreement;

This agreement contains the complete expression of the agreement between the
College and the City, on the subjects contained herein and there are no other
oral or written agreements or understandings between the entities and the
College concerning these subjects. Any prior agreements or understandings on
the matters addressed in this Agreement are hereby rescinded, revoked or
terminated. This Agreement may be modified or amended only by subsequent
written agreement approved by the authorized representatives of the City;

12.Both parties herein agree that the use of the property described herein is for a

public purpose and for the benefit of the public;

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this memorandum of
understanding as of the date below.

Dateé - 15 - j & Date:

City of Albion

. Signed:
Jerry L. White, VP Finance and’Admin. Sheryl Mitchell, City Manager




ASSESSMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Agreement is entered into pursuant to the Urban Cooperation Act (hereinafter
“UCA"), MCL 124.501 et. Seaq., this day of , 2016, by and between the City
of Albion, a Michigan municipal corporation, with offices at 112 Cass Street, Albion, Michigan
49224 (hereinafter “Albion”) and the City of Marshall, a Michigan municipal corporation, with
offices at 323 West Michigan Avenue, Marshall, Michigan 49068 (hereinafter “Marshall”).

WHEREAS Albion and Marshall are public agencies as defined in the UCA;

WHEREAS Marshall and Albion wish to, pursuant to Section 4 of the UCA, share certain
powers which each might exercise separately;

WHEREAS Marshall and Albion, as allowed by the UCA, wish to collaborate in the
provision of assessing services thereby resulting in better delivery of services for a lower cost to
the mutual benefit of both parties;

WHEREAS, Marshall, through its Assessing function within the Finance Department, can
provide a Michigan Advanced Assessing Officer (hereinafter “MAAQ") with appropriate expertise
and experience in assessing to be the Assessor of Record for Albion and provide the
assessment services as set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, Albion wishes to contract with Marshall for the assessment services as set
forth herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this Agreement, the
parties hereby agree as follows:

1. Obligations of Marshall.

The City of Marshall shall provide all necessary and/or required MAAO assessing services to
Albion during the term of the Agreement, including the following:

a. Maintain all current and future assessment records, including records of property
splits, new construction, exempt properties, homestead exemptions, and all
records required by applicable state statute and regulation.

b. Review all parcels and determine the appropriate classification and conduct
physical inspections when necessary to verify the accuracy of a property's
classification.

c. Review all parcels and associated records to determine the accuracy of data for
calculation of value for the purpose of assessment and taxation.

d. Conduct as required on an annual basis a personal property canvas and print, and
send all personal property notices in accordance with state statue and applicable
authority.

e. Conduct re-inspections of twenty percent of each class of property each year as
required by State Tax Commission 14 point AMARS review, and maintain for each
property an appraised digital photo, sketch of the property, and assessment record
card.
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Send assessment change notices annually as required by statue.

Prepare Economic Condition Factors (‘ECF”) and land value grids in accordance
with State Tax Commission guidelines each year.

Meet with members of the City's Board of Review on or before the Tuesday
following the first Monday in March, being the first meeting of the Board of Review,
and at the organizational meeting of the Board, will turn the assessment roll over to
the Board of Review, explain the changes in the roll from the prior year, and allow
the Board of Review to review the assessment roll as needed.

Attend the meeting of the Board of Review during the Board of Review’s process of
hearing appeals for property owners.

Provide any and all services and perform all duties required of the City Assessor as
provided in the Albion City Charter, Section 8.8.

Dedicate on average one and one half (1.5) days per week to Albion assessing
services.

Maintain specific staff hours as established by mutual agreement between the
Albion and Marshall.

. Conduct re-inspections and/or assessments of Albion properties as requested by

the Albion City Attorney.

Maintain a MAAQO throughout the entire term of this contract.

Assist Albion in other areas which require MAAO Certification.

Assist Albion to ensure that Albion is in full compliance with all rules, regulations,
and policies currently in place or if promulgated in the future by the Treasury
Department and/or the State Tax Commission.

Handle Tax Tribunal Small Claims matters (with assistance from the Albion City
Attorney) and assist the City Attorney with matters before the Entire Tribunal.
Provide such other coverage through Marshall personnel as may be necessary to
carry out the duties set forth above, and to carry out such other duties as the
parties may agree upon from time to time in writing.

Obligations of Albion.

The City of Albion agrees to provide the following for the use of Marshall in performing the
duties set forth in paragraph 1:

3.

a. Twenty-four (24) hour access to the Albion's assessment records.
b. Access to such other records (maps, building permits, building plans, and other

applicable documents) as may be necessary for Marshall from time to time to properly
execute the duties of assessor.

Such other documents and assistance as shall be necessary from time to time to

perform the duties set forth in paragraph 1.
d. Provide office space and full computer support while working on Albion files.

Term.

This agreement shall be effective for an initial term commencing on July 1, 2016, and shall
remain in full force and effect until June 30, 2017. This agreement may be extended or renewed
upon mutual agreement of the parties.



4. Payment For Services.

It is expressly understood and agreed that the compensation for the performance of the services
set forth in paragraph 1 by Marshall for Albion shall be in an amount not to exceed Forty-Five
Thousand Six Hundred Fifty ($45,650.00) dollars, paid in monthly intervals, for the agreement
period. Upon the presentation of a properly submitted invoice, payments will be made by Albion
to Marshall within 30 days of the invoice receipt following the last day of each monthly term
completed. In the event that the contract is terminated by Albion prior to the completion of any
monthly term, Albion will pay Marshall the full monthly sum then due. Modification in the
amounts charged by Marshall for services shall be reviewed on at least an annual basis by the
City Manager of Albion and the Finance Director of Marshall and changes therein agreed to in
writing by them.

5 Termination of Agreement.

If Marshall fails to fulfill in a timely and proper manner its obligation under this agreement, or
shall violate any of the covenants, agreements and stipulations herein, Albion shall give
Marshall written notice of such breach, and in the event that Marshall has not remedied such
breach within thirty (30) days, Albion, within its sole discretion, shall have the right to terminate
this Agreement. Such termination, in the event that the breach has not been remedied, shall
take immediate effect upon the expiration of the thirty (30) day notice period.

Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time, with or without cause, if it is their
decision that termination is in the party's best interests. The terminating party will provide no
less than thirty (30) days written notice to the other party.

Payment will be made for all services provided under this agreement up to and including the
effective date of the termination of services.

6. General Terms and Conditions.

6.1 This Agreement constitutes the complete expression of the agreement between
Marshall and Albion on the subjects contained herein and there are no other oral or written
agreements or understandings between the entities concerning these subjects. Any prior
agreements or understandings on the matters addressed in this Agreement are hereby
rescinded, revoked or terminated. Except as provided for in paragraph 5, this Agreement may
be modified or amended only by subsequent written agreement approved by the City Councils
of Marshall and Albion.

6.2  This Agreement shall be interpreted under the laws of the State of Michigan. |If
any portion is held to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, the remainder of the Agreement shall
be deemed severable and shall remain in full force and effect.

6.3 Any notices pursuant to this Agreement shall be sent to the parties and shall be
directed to the persons and addresses stated below:

City of Marshall City of Albion
Finance Director City Manager
323 West Michigan Avenue 112 Cass Street



Marshall, Ml 49068 Albion, M| 49224

6.4 In providing services under this Agreement, the parties recognize Marshall
personnel will, from time to time, be doing work for Albion. Marshall and Albion agree that the
point of contact for all communication and direction regarding work to be performed by Marshall
personnel under this Agreement shall be the City Manager of Albion. Marshall reserves the

right to control and direct all of its employees, and the times when they may perform services
under this Agreement.

6.5 Marshall warrants and represents that its personnel who will perform the services
under this Agreement are fully qualified and have all required licenses and/or certifications to
perform the services described herein. Marshall further represents and agrees that its
relationship to Albion and its performance under this contract is that of an independent
contractor. It is clearly understood that each party shall act in its individual capacity and not as
an agent, employee, partner, joint venture, or associate of the other. An employee or agent of
Marshall shall not be deemed or construed to be the employee or agent of Albion for any
purpose whatsoever. Marshall employee(s) providing services to Albion hereunder shall not be
entitled to compensation in the form of salaries, or any type of fringe benefits by Albion. At all
times, the personnel provided by Marshall will be covered by Marshall's workers’ compensation
coverage.

6.6 Marshall agrees, to the extent allowed by law, to indemnify Albion for any and all
claims, actions, damages, liability, costs, and expenses, including attorney fees, incurred
primarily as a result of the actions or inactions of Marshall's elected and appointed officials,
employees, officers and agents. Albion agrees, to the extent allowed by law, to indemnify the
Marshall for any and all claims, actions, damages, liability, costs, and expenses, including
attorney fees, incurred primarily as a result of the actions or inactions of Albion’s elected and
appointed officials, employees, officers and agents.

6.7 Marshall and Albion herein agree that this agreement may not be modified
except in writing, signed by both parties.

6.8 Marshall, its employees, officers, or agents, shall not discriminate against any
persons within the City of Albion regarding employment, housing, public accommodations, and
public services on the basis of age, color, disability, education, familial status, gender
expression, gender identity, height, marital status, national origin, race, religion, sex, sexual
orientation, or weight, pursuant to City Ordinance.

By the signatures executed below, the parties agree to the terms of this Agreement and the
signatories represent that they have the authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the
party for which they have signed.



City of Marshall,

By:

Finance Director
By:

City Clerk
June ___, 2016

City of Albion,
By:

Mayor
By:

City Clerk

June . 2016



City of Marshall
City of Albion

City Assessor Function

Payroll & Fringes
Overtime

Supplies & Services
Postage

Contractual Services
Travel

Data Processing
Training

Waorkers' Comp.

Marshall
Albion

Does not include BOR, Tax Tribunal

or Legal Expenses

Albion
Marshall

_ Approved Adopted
‘Contract Amount Budget
FY2015 * FY2016 FY 2016-2017
s 139,103.91 S 138,275.00 ['s 140,629.00
|$ 1,000.00 $ 1,283.00 S 500.00
B 550000 $  5825.00 S 3,250.00
B 4,000.00
$ 4,000.00 $ 7,500.00 S 7,500.00
S 1,500.00 $ 4,000.00 S 4,000.00
S 2,000.00 $ 5,135.00 'S 5,200.00
S 1,200.00 S 2,500.00 S 3,000.00
$ 150.00 $ 367.00 $ 32.00
S 158,453.91 $ 164,885.00 S 164,111.00
70%
30%
2015 2015 2016

| 12 months 9 months * 12 months

S 47,536.17 ¢  36,000.00 $ 49,46550 $ 49,233.30
|'s 110,917.74 $ 122,453.91 $ 115,419.50 $ 114,877.70
I 158,453.91 $ 15845391 $ 164,885.00 $ 164,111.00




MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT

ARTICLE |

THIS AGREEMENT entered into this 15 day of June, 2016 by and between: City
of Eaton Rapids, a municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as Eaton
Rapids;” and City of Albion, a municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as
“Albion.”

ARTICLE Il
PURPOSE AND INTENT

A. The interest of this Agreement is to set forth the terms and conditions of a mutual
aid agreement between Eaton Rapids and Albion to support and assist each other
in times of need; and

B. WHEREAS, intergovernmental agreements to provide functions or services,
including the sharing of costs of such services or functions, by political
subdivisions are authorized by Mich. Const. of 1963, Art. VII, § 28; M.C.L. §124.1
et seq.; and MCL 764.2a; and

C. WHEREAS, the parties hereto are each authorized to lawfully provide, establish,
maintain, and operate law enforcement and other emergency services; and

D. WHEREAS, each of the parties hereto maintain law enforcement and emergency
equipment; and

E. WHEREAS, incidents may arise in one or another of the jurisdictions of the
parties, resulting in greater demands than the personnel and equipment of that
party can handle, or emergencies of such intensity may occur that they cannot
be handled by the equipment of the party in whose jurisdiction the need occurs;
and

F. WHEREAS, itis in the best interest of each of the parties that it may have service
of and from the other parties to aid and assist it in the purpose of law enforcement
or responding to other emergencies; and

G. WHEREAS, establishment of a mutual aid agreement will serve a public purpose
and will promote the safety, security, and general welfare of the inhabitants of the
parties; and

H. WHEREAS, the parties agree to provide mutual aid and assistance in accordance
with the understandings, commitments, terms and conditions for said aid and
assistance, as follows:

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS:
A. Agency: a governmental unit’s law enforcement department.
B. Mutual Aid: the reciprocal agreement predetermined between two (2) or more

governmental units or communities desiring to support each other upon
request for supplemental personnel and/or equipment.

Mutual Aid Agreement June 15, 2016



C. Incident Commander: the person responsible for the overall management of
the incident and retains all vested authority in the incident. The IC is normally
located at a command post.

D. Need: a combination of circumstances requiring action that calls for manpower
or equipment that is not readily available to the requesting governmental unit.

E. Officer in Charge of Police Operations: the senior or highest ranking officer
available of the requesting agency who has responsibility for directing the
department at the time of a need for assistance.

F. Officer in Command of Police Operations: shall mean the senior or highest
ranking officer on duty for a responding agency at the time a request for
mutual aid is made.

G. Requesting Agency: the jurisdiction in which a need for assistance exists and
that requests aid pursuant to this agreement.

H. Responding Agency: the agency that sends personnel and/or equipment to a
requesting agency pursuant to the Mutual Aid Agreement.

ARTICLE IV
DETERMINATION AND DECLARATION OF NEED:

The Requesting Agency shall be responsible for determining and declaring that
a need exists in his/her jurisdiction.

ARTICLE V
REQUEST FOR ASSISTANCE:
Upon determining a need for assistance exists, and that a Mutual Aid response
is necessary, the requesting agency shall request aid from the responding
agency.

ARTICLE VI
RESPONSE TO REQUEST:

The responding agency shall make available to the requesting agency such
personnel and/or equipment that can safely be released to respond to the need.

ARTICLE VII
DIRECTION AT THE SCENE OF THE NEED:
An Officer of the requesting agency shall be responsible for police operations at
the scene. All personnel and equipment of a responding agency shall be under
the direction of the Officer in Charge of the requesting agency unless an Incident
Commander is designated. The requesting agency or the incident commander is
responsible to establish a communication plan for the incident.

ARTICLE VI

WITHDRAWAL OF PERSONNEL AND EQUIPMENT:

Mutual Aid Agreement June 15, 2016
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After notification to the Incident Commander or, if none, the Officer in Charge at
the scene, personnel and/or equipment of the responding agency may be
withdrawn at the discretion of the Officer in command of the responding agency.
The responding agency shall not have any obligation to keep its personnel and/or
equipment at the scene of the requesting agency'’s incident for a longer period of
time than is deemed necessary by the Officer in Command of Police Operations
of the responding agency.

ARTICLE IX
LIABILITY

A. No party to this agreement shall be liable for declining or failing to respond to
or, inversely, withdrawing from a request for assistance.

B. Each requesting and assisting party operating under this agreement shall bear
the risk of its own actions as it would with normal, day-to-day operations.

C. Requesting agencies shall not be responsible for the liability or the defense
of the employees, volunteers, agents and subcontractors, of the assisting
parties.

ARTICLE X
WAIVER OF COMPENSATION

The responding and requesting agencies waive all claims for compensation from
each other including wages, disability payments, retirement, furlough and
payments or charges made for equipment, supplies and materials used or
expended while rendering service under this mutual aid agreement.

ARTICLE XI
INDEMNITY IN JOINT TRAINING:

Each agency entering this agreement shall indemnify and hold harmless from all
claims, demands, costs or damages (including attorney’s fees) for bodily injury,
including death, or property damage to any person, participant or entity arising
out of the acts or omissions of participants and/or personnel of the agency
conducting joint training programs.

ARTICLE Xl
REIMBURSEMENT:

When a requesting agency becomes aware of, or makes application for,
reimbursement for the cost of operations, it shall notify the participants of the
availability of funds. When applicable, the initiating governmental agency will
apply for all participants. Each agency shall maintain appropriate records to
support any request for reimbursement. If the incident is a MEMAC Incident then
those regulations apply

ARTICLE Xl

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:

Mutual Aid Agreement June 15, 2016

R-3



For:

By:

Its:

For:

By:

Its:

Each agency in this agreement shall continue to provide the same salaries,
workers compensation, retirement and other fringe benefits to its employees
responding to a mutual aid request as those employees would receive while on
duty in their own jurisdiction.

ARTICLE XIV
TERMINATION:
Any party to this agreement may terminate this agreement by providing the other
parties of this agreement with written notice thirty (30) days prior to the time the
party wishes to withdraw its service from the Reciprocal Mutual aid Agreement.
ARTICLE XV
EFFECTIVE:
This agreement becomes effective for each agency on the date signed by its
authorized representative and after approval by the City Council and shall remain
in force until such time it is terminated by one or more of the parties.
ARTICLEXVI
AMENDMENTS:

As changes occur, the majority of the participants can amend this agreement. All
Amendments shall be in writing and signed by the participating parties.

ARTICLE XVII
SEVERABILITY:
Should any provision, paragraph, section or part of this Agreement be found void
or unenforceable by a Court or competent jurisdiction, the remainder shall
continue in full force and effect.

ARTICLE XVIII
EXECUTION:

This agreement is approved and executed by:

For:

By:

Its:

For:

By:

Its:

Mutual Aid Agreement June 15, 2016
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Certified Public Accountants

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of City Council
City of Albion, Michigan

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Albion, Michigan (the City) for the year ended December 31, 2015. Professional
standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted
auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope
and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated April 7, 2015.
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the City are described in Note A to the financial statements. As described in Note O
to the financial statements, the City adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No.
68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, and GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for
Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date - An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 68, during
the year ended December 31, 2015. Accordingly, the cumulative effects of the accounting changes are reported
in the applicable financial statements. We noted no transactions entered into by the City during the year for
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized
in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based
on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future
events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial
statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those
expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the governmental activities, business-type activities, Sewer
Fund, Water Fund, and the aggregate discretely presented component units financial statements were:

Management’s calculation of current and noncurrent compensated absence payments is based on an
estimate of the percentage of employees’ use of compensated absences. We evaluated the key factors and
assumptions used to develop the historical percentages for current and noncurrent compensated absence
payments in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Management’s calculation of depreciation expense for the current period is based on an estimate of the useful

lives of the capital assets. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the useful lives for
the capital assets in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Auburn Hills = East Lansing = Grand Rapids = St. Johns



The most sensitive estimate affecting the financial statements of the governmental activities and the General
Fund was:

Management’s calculation of the allowance for uncollectible accounts related to the income tax receivable is
based on historical collection trends. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the
estimate in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

The most sensitive estimate affecting the financial statements of the governmental activities was:

Management’s calculation of the net post-employment obligation and net pension asset is calculated based
on actuarial studies which utilized certain actuarial assumptions. We evaluated the key factors and
assumptions used to develop the calculations of the net post-employment benefit obligation and net pension
asset in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit,
other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. There
were the following uncorrected misstatements of the financial statements. Management has determined that
their effects are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Governmental activities and aggregate remaining fund information - One (1) potential misstatement for a total
overstated net position of $47,709.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the
auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated June 14, 2016.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an
accounting principle to the City’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may
be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with
us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such
consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City’s auditors. However, these discussions
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our
retention.



Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to the management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison
schedules, and pension system and other post-employment benefit system schedules, which are required
supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.

We were engaged to report on the Other Supplementary Information, as identified in the table of contents, which
accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we made
certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to
determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate
and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the
supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to
the financial statements themselves.

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the use of the honorable mayor, members of City Council, and
management of the City of Albion and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Mop!’%ﬂﬂ

ABRAHAM & GAFFNEY, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

June 14, 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Albion, Michigan

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City of Albion, Michigan (the City) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015,
which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the
financial statements of the Albion Housing Commission, which represents 88 percent, 90 percent, and 69 percent,
respectively, of the assets, net position, and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units.
Those statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar
as it relates to the amounts included for Albion Housing Commission, is based solely on the report of other
auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.
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Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Albion, Michigan, as of December 31, 2015, and the
respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Changes in Accounting Principles

As discussed in Note O to the financial statements, the City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, during the year. As a
result, the financial statements now recognize the City’s unfunded (funded) defined pension benefit obligation as
a liability (asset) for the first time and more comprehensively and comparably measures the annual costs of
pension benefits. The statement also enhances accountability and transparency through revised note
disclosures and required supplementary information (RSI). Our opinion is not modified with respect to this
matter.

Also as discussed in Note O to the financial statements, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 71, Pension
Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date - An Amendment of GASB Statement
No. 68, during the year. As a result, the City recognized a beginning deferred outflow of resources for its
pension contributions made subsequent to the measurement date of the beginning net pension liability (asset).
Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, and pension system and other post-employment
benefit system schedules, as identified in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquires of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of
the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial
statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and
were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 14, 2016, on
our consideration of the City of Albion, Michigan’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering City of Albion’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

%.’%AC

ABRAHAM & GAFFNEY, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

June 14, 2016


sedgerton
A&G Signature


City of Albion
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2015
This discussion and analysis is intended to provide an overview of the City’s financial condition for the year
ended December 31, 2015, as well as an analysis of what this financial condition means for the future financial
operations of the City. The information provided in this discussion and analysis should be reviewed in

conjunction with the audit information provided in the audit of the City’s 2015 fiscal year.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Under GASB 34 government-wide financial statements have been added to the financial reporting with the intent
of providing a broad overview of the City’s finances. The government-wide statements are presented on a full
accrual basis of accounting, similar to a private business. This means revenues are accounted for when they
are earned and expenses are accounted for when incurred, regardless of when the actual cash is received or
disbursed. Two government-wide statements are provided. One government-wide statement, the Statement of
Net Position, presents information on all of the City’'s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and
deferred inflows of resources, with the difference shown as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in
the City’s net position may be an indicator of whether the City’s financial health is improving or deteriorating.
However, other factors both financial and non-financial should be considered in assessing the overall financial
health of the City.

The second government-wide statement, the Statement of Activities, provides information on how the
government-wide net position changed during the fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported based on
the period for which the underlying events giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows. Therefore, revenues and expenses are reported in the statements for some items that will only
result in cash flows in future financial periods, such as uncollected taxes and earned but unused employee
annual leave.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we report the following kinds of activities:

o Governmental Activities - Most of the City’s basic services are reported here, including, but not limited
to, police, fire, general administration, parks and recreation, public works, and major and local streets.
Taxes, charges for services and intergovernmental revenue primarily fund these services.

e Business-type Activities - These activities operate like private business. The City charges fees to
recover the cost of the services provided. The City’s water and sewer activities are reported here.

e Component Units - Component units are legally separate organizations for which the City Council
appoints a majority of the organizations board and there is a degree of financial accountability to the
City. Discretely presented component units for the City of Albion are the Downtown Development
Authority (DDA), the Economic Development Corporation (EDC), and the Tax Increment Finance
Authority (TIFA).

Following the government-wide financial statements will be Governmental Fund Financial Statements. While
the government-wide financial statements are presented on a full accrual basis of accounting, the Governmental
Fund Financial Statements are presented on a modified accrual basis of accounting.

The differences between the full accrual basis and modified accrual basis of accounting are primarily related to
inclusion of capital assets and recognition of certain receivables and long-term liabilities in the Government-wide
Statement of Net Position, which are not included in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet. Also, there is a
difference related to the timing of reporting capital outlays and debt principal repayment in the Governmental
Funds Financial Statements and a difference in the timing of the recognition of certain revenues and
expenditures such as bond proceeds, accrued interest, and accrued employee leave time in the Governmental
Funds Financial Statements versus the Government-wide Statements. (See following table)
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Item Government-Wide Government Fund
Description Statements Statements
Capital Assets Depreciation reported Depreciation not reported
Capital Outlay Capital asset Reported as expenditure
Internal Service Fund (Equip. Pool) Government activity Proprietary fund
Long-term liability (sick leave) Liability Actual expenditures
Bond proceeds Liability Other financing source

Fund Financial Statements

The Fund Financial Statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds (activities); not the
City as a whole. A Fund is a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts that the City uses
to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending for a particular purpose. GASB 34 defines these
significant funds as “major funds” which are reported separately as part of the Fund Financial Statements
portion of the audit.

The Major funds for the City of Albion include the General Fund, Albion Trust, Solid Waste, Sidewalk Program,
MDOT Street Reconstruction, Sewer, and Water. All other funds will be classified as non-major funds and are
reported in aggregate by the applicable fund type. All of the funds of the City of Albion can be divided into three
categories; governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds - Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how
money flows into and out of these funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. The
City of Albion maintains several individual governmental funds. These funds are presented in the Balance
Sheet under Governmental Fund Types under the categories of General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt
Service Funds, and Capital Project Funds.

Proprietary Funds - When the City charges customers for the services it provides, these services are generally
reported in Proprietary Funds. The City of Albion uses two types of proprietary funds. Enterprise Funds are
used to report the activities for the water and sewer operations. The Internal Service Fund is used to report the
activities for the equipment pool operations.

Fiduciary Funds - The City of Albion is the trustee, or fiduciary, for the following funds: Public Safety Officers’
Pension and the Retiree Health Care. All of the City’s fiduciary funds are reported in a separate statement of
Fiduciary Net Position. The government-wide statements exclude the fiduciary fund activities and balances
because these assets are not available to the City of Albion to fund its operations.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of
the detail provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information

Following the basic financial statements is additional required supplementary information, which further explains
and supports the information in the financial statements. Other supplementary information includes combining
financial statements for non-major governmental funds, component unit funds, and schedules of outstanding debt.
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Government-Wide (City as a Whole) Financial Analysis

The Statement of Net Position provides information that can be helpful in evaluating the City’s financial
condition. The net position and changes over time can provide an indication of whether the City’s financial
health is improving or deteriorating. However, it should be noted that other factors both economic and non-
economic could affect the City’s financial health.

The largest portion of the City’s net position is invested in capital assets (streets, buildings, land, equipment, and
utility systems). These assets are used to provide services to residents in the community and therefore these
assets are not available to pay operating expenses, etc. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the funds needed to repay current City debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to cover these liabilities.

Net Position as December 31, 2015 and 2014

Total
Governmental Business-type Primary
Activities Activities Government
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Current and
Other Assets $14,104,696 $15,437,062 $ 2,020,372 $ 1,897,411 $16,125,068 $17,334,473
Capital Assets 10,575,724 9,981,315 8,501,495 8,896,554 19,077,219 18,877,869
Total Assets 24,680,420 25,418,377 10,521,867 10,793,965 35,202,287 36,212,342
Deferred Outflows of Resouces 1,805,660 - - - 1,805,660 -
Current Liabilities 986,069 956,573 288,780 223,345 1,274,849 1,179,918
Noncurrent Liabilities 2,572,567 2,917,588 232,961 376,754 2,805,528 3,294,342
Total Liabilities 3,558,636 3,874,161 521,741 600,099 4,080,377 4,474,260
Deferred Inflows of Resouces 258,979 - - - 258,979 -
Net Position
Net investment in Capital
Assets 7,982,595 7,012,016 8,201,495 8,451,554 16,184,090 15,463,570
Restricted 11,863,953 3,141,517 61,990 61,990 11,925,943 3,203,507
Unrestricted 2,821,917 11,390,683 1,736,641 1,680,322 4,558,558 13,071,005
Total Net Position $22,668,465 $21,544,216 $10,000,126 $10,193,866 $32,668,591  $31,738,082

This 2014 governmental activities balances in this table has been restated to reflect the restatement in net
position as described in Note P. The total net position for Governmental Activities increased by $1,075,109, due
to decreases in public safety and public works expenses as compared to the PY. The total net position for
business-type activities decreased by $193,270 mainly as a result of operating losses in the Water and Sewer
funds.
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Changes in Net Position for the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

Total
Governmental Business-type Primary
Activities Activities Government
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Revenues
Program Revenues
Charges for Services $ 1,066,546 $ 985880 $ 1,959,687 $ 2,004,350 $ 3,026,233 $ 2,990,230
Grants and
Contributions 1,755,013 1,933,077 403,358 - 2,158,371 1,933,077
General Revenues
Property Taxes 1,635,184 1,558,176 - - 1,635,184 1,658,176
Income Taxes 925,010 979,477 - - 925,010 979,477
State Shared
Revenues 1,024,400 1,020,273 - - 1,024,400 1,020,273
Investment Earnings 62,085 64,747 6,546 4,210 68,631 68,957
Miscellaneous 246,086 630,989 24,011 65,222 270,097 696,211
Transfers 164,239 164,739 (164,239) (164,739) -0- -0-
Total Revenues $ 6,878,563 $ 7,337,358 $ 2,229,363 $ 1,909,043 $ 9,107,926 $ 9,246,401
Expenses
General Government $ 1,068,358 $ 1,249,645 $ - $ - $ 1,068,358 $ 1,249,645
Public Safety 1,599,730 1,929,994 - - 1,599,730 1,929,994
Public Works 1,739,604 1,827,001 - - 1,739,604 1,827,001
Health and Welfare 9,129 33,181 - - 9,129 33,181
Community and
Econ. Development 755,376 735,189 - - 755,376 735,189
Recreation
and Cultural 470,518 432,640 - - 470,518 432,640
Interest on Long
Term Debt 111,599 133,148 - - 111,599 133,148
Other - - 2,423,103 2,081,713 2,423,103 2,081,713
Total Expenses 5,754,314 6,340,798 2,423,103 2,081,713 8,177,417 8,422,511
Change in Net Position 1,124,249 996,560 (193,740) (172,670) 930,509 823,890
Restated Net Position- Beginning 21,544,216 9,699,711 10,193,866 10,366,536 20,066,247 19,696,768
Net Position
Ending $22,668,465 $10,696,271 $10,000,126 $10,193,866 $32,668,591  $20,890,137

(Note: the 2014 column is prior to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 68, which was effective for fiscal
years beginning after June 15, 2014.)

- vii -
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Governmental Activities

Revenues:

The three largest revenue sources under the governmental activities category are operating grants and
contributions at 26%, property taxes at 23% and charges for services at 16%. For 2015, overall governmental
revenues were down about 6%. Contributing to this was a decline in Income Tax revenues of just over $54,000,
a decline in grant revenue of $178,000, and a decline in miscellaneous revenues of almost $385,000. The
decline in income tax revenue is partially due to fewer filers as the population continues to decline and people
move away out of the City. Grant revenue reflected a decline due to the unusually large grant received in 2014
for the new fire truck, with nothing coming close to matching this in 2015. The miscellaneous revenues reflected
a decline due to some unusually large reimbursements received in 2014 and not in 2015.

Expenses:

The largest governmental activities expense item is Public Works at 30% of total expenses. The next largest
expense item is Public Safety at 28% of total expenses. Total expenses decreased by about $586,484 from
approximately $6.3 million in 2014 to approximately $5.7 million in 2015. In a continuing effort to maintain a
balanced budget, the City strives to reduce expenses in almost every category. The City will continue to
diligently monitor expenses and look for cost savings for its taxpayers.

Business-Type Activities

The Statement of Net Position shows that for business-type activities as of December 31, 2015, there was a
total net position of $10,000,126, which represents a decrease of $193,740 from the prior year. The Statement
of Net Position is significantly affected by the recording of depreciation expense. For utility funds, the City’s
charter requires that rates be “...fixed as to at least meet all the costs of such utility, including depreciation”.
Therefore, the City’s utility funds record depreciation even if revenues are not sufficient to fund depreciation for
the fiscal year. More detail about the Business-Type Activities is provided in a later section.

Financial Analysis of the City’s Major Funds

General Fund:

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City of Albion. As of December 31, 2015, the General
Fund had a nonspendable fund balance of $226,782, an assigned fund balance of $41,345 and an unassigned
fund balance of $894,130. Total fund balance had an increase of $88,914 from the fund balance on December
31, 2014.

From a budgetary standpoint, General Fund budgeted revenues and other financing sources were greater than
actual revenues by $2,388 and expenditures and other financing uses came in under budget by $82,157.

Albion Trust Fund:

The Albion Trust Fund is used to account for funding for City improvements as a whole and to set dollars aside
for the Maple Grove Apartment Facility Bonds. The fund balance decreased as the result of current year activity
by $115,898. Fund balance for this fund was $1,086,150 at year-end.

Solid Waste:

Fund balance decreased by $64,279 during the year. The Solid Waste fund balance was $39,214 as of
December 31, 2015.

- Viii -
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Sidewalk Program:

Fund balance increased by $46,871 during the year. The Sidewalk Program fund balance was $266,464 as of
December 31, 2015.

MDOT Street Reconstruction:

Fund balance increased by $136,638 during the year. The MDOT Street Reconstruction fund balance was
$141,105 as of December 31, 2015.

Sewer:

The City operates a wastewater treatment plant and collection system that serves the City and a small portion of
a neighboring township. For the last several years, the City has increased rates; however, the system has not
been able to cover all of its operating costs, including depreciation. Net position for the sewer system
decreased by $118,441 to a December 31, 2015, level of $4,563,363. The maijority of these assets are invested
in facilities and equipment. The City recognizes that additional rate increases will be required, and in fact,
increased rates have been established for 2016. The City has received a sizable grant that will cover the cost of
a rate study. The City intends to have this study conducted in the very near future to determine what level the
rates should be set at, and to determine if the current rate structure is maximizing revenues.

Water:

The City operates a water treatment plant and distribution system that serves the City and a small portion of the
neighboring townships. For the last several years, the City has increased rates; however, the City had operating
loss of $66,260 in the current year. Net position for the water system decreased by $75,299 to a December 31,
2015, level of $5,436,763. As stated above in the Sewer analysis, the City intends to conduct a rate study in the
very near future to determine the appropriate fees and rates to charge. In addition, the City is also exploring
some grants in an effort to obtain funding for some major infrastructure maintenance. One of the top priorities is
to have the City’s water tower repainted and serviced to not only extend its life, but also to ensure we continue
to provide clean, safe drinking water for the residents.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

At the end of the year, the City had invested $10,575,724 and $8,501,495 (net of accumulated depreciation) for
governmental and business-type capital assets respectively. Depreciation charges for the fiscal year totaled
$554,656 for the governmental activities and $449,334 for the business-type activities. The following chart
provides more detail on these capital assets.

Business-
Governmental Type
Activities Activities Total

Land and construction in progress $ 789,922 $ 93,700 $ 883,622

Buildings and improvements, net 4,122,007 5,079,983 9,201,990
Infrastructure, net 4,502,114 - 4,502,114
Vehicles and equipment, net 1,161,681 123,707 1,285,388
Sewer system, net - 1,453,534 1,453,534
Water system, net - 1,750,571 1,750,571
Capital Assets, net $ 10,575,724 $ 8,501,495 $ 19,077,219
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Long-term Debt:
As of December 31, 2015, the City had the following bond debt outstanding:

Primary Government

Jan. 1, 2015 Additions Deletions Dec. 31, 2015

Governmental Activities
General Obligation Bonds $ 1,525,000 $ - $ (120,000) $ 1,405,000
Refunding Bonds 400,000 - (130,000) 270,000
Installment Purchase Agreement 18,284 - (18,284) -
EPA Liability 85,871 - (5,482) 80,389
Building Authority Bonds 900,000 - (80,000) 820,000
Land contract 126,015 - (27,886) 98,129
Compensated Absences 252,680 181,306 (147,169) 286,817
3,307,850 181,306 (528,821) 2,960,335

Business-type Activities
Revenue Refunding Bonds 445,000 - (145,000) 300,000
Compensated Absences 107,972 56,201 (49,554) 114,619
552,972 56,201 (194,554) 414,619
Total Primary Government $ 3,860,822 $ 237,507 $ (723,375) $ 3,374,954

As of December 31, 2015, the City had total outstanding debt for governmental activities (including
compensated absences) of $2,960,335. For business-type activities, the outstanding debt (including
compensated absences) was $414,619 as of December 31, 2015. As a result of the significant cost for issuing
bonds, the City for the past several years has used an installment purchase process to purchase land, buildings,
and equipment. These obligations are reflected in the chart showing the City’s outstanding debt.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget

In 2008, because of the approved special millage to fund the new Albion District Library, the City lowered its
operating millage to 10.3802 mills. In 2014, the City raised the general operating millage by 0.0934 mills to a
total of 11.9736 mills where it remained for 2015. In addition, the City has several special millages that have
been approved by the voters. For 2015 these were:

a. Water plant bonds - 1.52 mills
b. Street reconstruction - 3.00 mills
c. Recreation - 1.50 mills

Additionally, the City levies 2.0 mills for solid waste under existing state statute (this will increase to 3.0 mills for
2016). Thus, the 2015 total City millage levy was 19.9936 mills. Because of its effort to cut costs, the City was
able to operate within budget during 2015. However, there are continued concerns with declining taxable values
within the City and as the State has passed legislation to eliminate personal property taxes. Additionally, the
City has experienced a sharp decline in its income taxes as well. These factors, combined with a continuation in
the rising costs of insurance, utilities and other major expenses is cause for concern. As stated earlier, the City
will diligently monitor its expenses and look for alternative sources of revenues, such as recovery fees, etc.
wherever possible. The direction of the State economy combined with future legislation will be key components
in the City’s success over the next several years.
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In the area of expenses, the City currently has contracts with all of its four unions, which do not expire until
December 31, 2017.

Just like other employers, the City has struggled with significant increases in the cost for medical insurance for
its employees.” Fortunately, for 2015 the City was able to keep healthcare costs relatively stable by making
minor modifications to its plan. The result was a modest 3.5% increase over 2014. However, there continues to
be significant concerns about the future costs of health insurance for the City’s employees. The Affordable Care
Act will likely require the City to make major changes in this area in the future. The City is still learning about
some of these changes at this time.

The City continues to pursue grants to assist with capital projects, as well as activities that can spur economic
development and job creation in the City. As a result of the special voted millage (the current 3.0 mill annual
levy was renewed in 2015 for another 5 years) for street reconstruction, the City is able to have an active street
reconstruction program each year. Because of this special Street millage, and with the assistance of some
State grants over $680,000 was spent on improving City streets in 2015.

In 2008, the City implemented a special assessment process for the repair and replacement of city sidewalks.
This process and construction is expected to last for 10 years. (There will be 2 years remaining on this program
after 2015). Because of this program, just over $109,000 in sidewalk repairs were completed in 2015.

Of significant importance is the announcement that a new hotel and conference center will be built in downtown
Albion. Construction is scheduled to start in August of 2016. Additionally the City recently saw the construction
and opening of a new auto parts store, a new fast food restaurant and a state-of-the-art dialysis center. One of the
downtowns larger buildings is currently undergoing a major renovation to provide office and conference space for
Albion College. In addition, some sizable expansions were recently completed at some of the major businesses in
and around the Albion area. This certainly appears to reflect an economic upswing for Albion. We are hopeful that
this economic growth will continue, and that the City as a whole will prosper in the years to come.

Contacting the City’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with a
general overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the accountability for the money it receives. If there
are questions about this report, or a need for additional information, contact the City Manager or the City
Treasurer at (517) 629-5535.
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Primary Government

Governmental  Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,230,640 $ 753,488 $ 3,984,128 $ 319,547
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted - 61,990 61,990 -
Investments 1,535,807 - 1,535,807 328,403
Receivables 657,699 602,396 1,260,095 94,510
Due from other governmental units 188,143 55,477 243,620 98,567
Inventories 37,146 9,904 47,050 -
Prepaids 248,879 17,635 266,514 16,874
Internal balances (120,000) 120,000 -0- -
Total current assets 5,778,314 1,620,890 7,399,204 857,901
Noncurrent assets
Investments - 399,482 399,482 -
Due from other governmental units 35,856 - 35,856 -
Net pension asset 8,290,526 - 8,290,526 -
Capital assets not being depreciated 789,922 93,700 883,622 205,799
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 9,785,802 8,407,795 18,193,597 3,762,476
Total noncurrent assets 18,902,106 8,900,977 27,803,083 3,968,275
TOTAL ASSETS 24,680,420 10,521,867 35,202,287 4,826,176
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 1,805,660 - 1,805,660 55,748
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 296,892 76,104 372,996 73,653
Accrued wages 65,915 27,627 93,542 -
Accrued liabilities 108,308 3,391 111,699 65,036
Due to other governmental units 7,286 - 7,286 35,856
Accrued interest payable 29,688 - 29,688 1,372
Unearned revenue 4,795 - 4,795 34,111
Current portion of compensated absences 116,005 36,658 152,663 17,010
Current portion of long-term debt 357,180 145,000 502,180 4,070
Total current liabilities 986,069 288,780 1,274,849 231,108

Noncurrent liabilities
Net OPEB obligation 85,417 - 85,417 -
- -0- 161,589

Net pension liability -
Noncurrent portion of compensated absences 170,812 77,961 248,773 75,388
Noncurrent portion of long-term debt 2,316,338 155,000 2,471,338 24,142
Total noncurrent liabilities 2,572,567 232,961 2,805,528 261,119
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,558,636 521,741 4,080,377 492,227
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 258,979 - 258,979 -
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 7,982,595 8,201,495 16,184,090 3,968,275
Restricted for:
Nonexpendable
Perpetual care 215,000 - 215,000 -
Expendable
Pension Trust 8,290,526
Debt service 60,023 61,990 122,013 -
Streets and highways 861,510 - 861,510 -
Sidewalks 252,064 - 252,064 -
Perpetual care 42,691 - 42,691 -
Community and economic development 2,028,663 - 2,028,663 41,841
Solid waste 39,214 - 39,214 -
Law enforcement 74,262 - 74,262 -
Unrestricted 2,821,917 1,736,641 12,849,084 379,581
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 22,668,465 $ 10,000,126 $ 32,668,591 $ 4,389,697

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Program Revenues

Primary Government

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental  Business-type Component
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions Activities Activities Total Units
Primary government
Governmental activities
General government $ 1,068,358 $ 555927 § 69,399 $ - $ (443,032) $ - $ (443,032) $ -
Public safety 1,599,730 50,161 56,742 - (1,492,827) - (1,492,827) -
Public works 1,739,604 163,424 792,453 - (783,727) - (783,727) -
Health and welfare 9,129 - - - (9,129) - (9,129) -
Community and economic development 755,376 283,491 814,078 - 342,193 - 342,193 -
Recreation and cultural 470,518 13,543 22,341 - (434,634) - (434,634) -
Interest on long-term debt 111,599 - - - (111,599) - (111,599) -
Total governmental activities 5,754,314 1,066,546 1,755,013 -0- (2,932,755) -0- (2,932,755) -0-
Business-type activities
Sewer system 1,493,642 1,125,809 397,002 - - 29,169 29,169 -
Water system 929,461 833,878 6,356 - - (89,227) (89,227) -
Total business-type activities 2,423,103 1,959,687 403,358 -0- -0- (60,058) (60,058) -0-
Total primary government $ 8,177,417 $ 3,026,233 $ 2,158,371 $ -0- (2,932,755) (60,058) (2,992,813) -0-
Component units
Economic Development Corporation $ 377664 $ 117999 $ 259337 $ - - - -0- (328)
Downtown Development Authority 88,720 - - - - - -0- (88,720)
Tax Increment Finance Authority 170,492 - - - - - -0- (170,492)
Albion Housing Commission 1,475,912 419,045 732,391 254,445 - - -0- (70,031)
Total component units $ 2,112,788 § 537,044 § 991,728 § 254,445 -0- -0- -0- (329,571)
General revenues
Property taxes 1,635,184 - 1,635,184 240,702
Income taxes 925,010 - 925,010 -
State shared revenue 1,024,400 - 1,024,400 -
Investment earnings 62,085 6,546 68,631 3,693
Miscellaneous 246,086 24,011 270,097 18,950
Transfers 164,239 (164,239) -0- -
Total general revenues and transfers 4,057,004 (133,682) 3,923,322 263,345
Change in net position 1,124,249 (193,740) 930,509 (66,226)
Restated net position, beginning of the year 21,544,216 10,193,866 31,738,082 4,455,923
Net position, end of the year $ 22,668,465 $ 10,000,126 $ 32,668,591 $ 4,389,697

See accompanying notes to financial statements.




City of Albion

Governmental Funds

BALANCE SHEET

December 31, 2015

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables
Interest
Accounts
Taxes
Loans
Due from other governmental units
Prepaids
Inventories

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued wages
Due to other funds
Due to other governmental units
Unearned revenue

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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General

Special Revenue

Solid
Waste

777,147
149,885

74,161
138,410

3,121
226,782

55,077
99,817

2,722
10,267

1,369,506

167,883

67,707
66,511
63,928

1,744

120,000

198,146

9,103

226,782

41,345
894,130

121,744

6,925

39,214

1,162,257

39,214

1,369,506

167,883




Capital Projects

MDOT Nonmajor Total

Sidewalk Street Governmental Governmental
Program Reconstruction Funds Funds

$ 338,871 % 143,756 $ 1,821,868 $ 3,136,719

- - 199,955 1,535,807

- - 4,026 4,026

- - 5,379 82,262

5,363 - 26,227 180,267

- - 390,995 390,995

- - 220,878 223,999

- - 14,904 241,686

14,400 - 13,979 28,379

$ 358,634 % 143,756 $ 2,698,211 $ 5,824,140

$ 92170 $ 2320 $ 43763 $ 205,960

- - 40,053 108,308

- - - 63,928

- - - 120,000

331 6,955 7,286

- 4,795 4,795

2,651 95,566 510,277

- 62,329 78,357

- 670,734 911,916

141,105 1,869,582 3,388,115

- - 41,345

- - 894,130

141,105 2,540,316 5,235,506

$ 143,756 $ 2,698,211 $ 5,824,140




City of Albion

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE
SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

December 31, 2015

Total fund balances - governmental funds $ 5,235,506
Amounts reported for the governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported as assets in the governmental funds.

The cost of capital assets is $ 15,605,036
Accumulated depreciation is (5,222,953)
Capital assets, net 10,382,083

Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the costs

of certain activities to individual funds. The assets and liabilities

of the Internal Service Funds are included in the governmental activities

in the Government-wide Statement of Net Position. 207,703

Long-term receivables are not available to pay for current period
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. These consist of:

Unavailable revenue 78,357

Some assets are not current financial resources and therefore are not reported as assets
in the governmental funds. These amounts consist of:

Net pension asset 8,290,526

Governmental funds report actual pension expenditures for the fiscal year, whereas the
governmental activities will recognize the net pension liability as of the measurement date.
Pension contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be deferred in the
statement of net position. In addition, resources related to changes of assumptions,
differences between expected and actual experience, and differences between projected
and actual pension plan investment earnings will be deferred over time in the government-
wide financial statements. These amounts consist of:

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 1,805,660
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (258,979)
1,546,681

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet.
Long-term liabilities at year-end consist of:

Direct City obligations (2,673,518)

Accrued interest payable (29,688)

Net other post-employment benefits obligation (85,417)

Compensated absences (283,768)

(3,072,391)
Net position of governmental activities $ 22,668,465

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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City of Albion
Governmental Funds
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Year Ended December 31, 2015

Special Revenue

Albion Solid
General Trust Waste
REVENUES
Taxes $ 1,956,176 $ - $ 142,367
Licenses and permits 155,149 - -
Intergovernmental 1,135,997 - 6,282
Charges for services 253,755 - -
Fines and forfeits 26,618 - -
Interest and rents 6,553 34,112 1,576
Other 111,293 - 2,887
TOTAL REVENUES 3,645,541 34,112 153,112
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 883,080 - -
Public safety 2,031,054 - -
Public works 236,385 - 210,891
Health and welfare 7,445 - -
Community and economic development - 10 -
Recreation and cultural 252,854 - -
Other 114,432 - -
Debt service - - -
Capital outlay - - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,525,250 10 210,891
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 120,291 34,102 (57,779)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 22,000 - -
Transfers out (53,377) (150,000) (6,500)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) (31,377) (150,000) (6,500)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 88,914 (115,898) (64,279)
Fund balances, beginning of year 1,073,343 1,202,048 103,493
Fund balances, end of year $ 1,162,257 $ 1,086,150 $ 39,214

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



Capital Projects

MDOT Nonmajor Total
Sidewalk Street Governmental Governmental
Program Reconstruction Funds Funds

$ - $ - $ 494661 $ 2,593,204
- - - 155,149
- 584,940 1,052,009 2,779,228
- - 32,747 286,502
- - 49,433 76,051
1,662 - 303,365 347,268
154,551 - 185,285 454,016
156,213 584,940 2,117,500 6,691,418
- - - 883,080
- - 75,019 2,106,073
95,217 - 677,730 1,220,223
- - - 7,445
- - 547,712 547,722
- - 129,472 382,326
- - 87,320 201,752
- - 477,872 477,872
- 681,073 12,258 693,331
95,217 681,073 2,007,383 6,519,824
60,996 (96,133) 110,117 171,594
- 232,771 577,790 832,561

(14,125) - (426,055) (650,057)
(14,125) 232,771 151,735 182,504
46,871 136,638 261,852 354,098
219,593 4,467 2,278,464 4,881,408

$ 266464 $ 141,105 § 2,540,316 § 5,235,506




City of Albion

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended December 31, 2015

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 354,098
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However, in the

statement of activities, the cost of capital assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives
as depreciation expense. In the current period, these amounts are:

Capital outlay $ 1,149,065
Depreciation expense (508,185)
Excess of capital outlay over depreciation expense 640,880

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of
certain activities to individual funds. 8,777

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Change in unavailable revenue 22,906
(Decrease) in net pension asset (1,771,345)
(1,748,439)
Repayment of long-term debt and borrowing of long-term debt is reported as expenditures and
other financing sources in governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term
liabilities and the borrowings increase long-term liabilities in the statement of net position.
In the current year, these amounts consist of:
Long-term debt principal retirements 363,368
Some items reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. These
activities consist of:
Increase in deferred outflows of resources 1,805,660
(Increase) in deferred inflows of resources (258,979)
Decrease in accrued interest payable 2,905
(Increase) in other post-employment benefits obligation (12,933)
(Increase) in accrued compensated absences (31,088)
1,505,565
Change in net position of governmental activities $ 1,124,249

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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City of Albion
Proprietary Funds
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

December 31, 2015

Governmental
Business-type Activities Activities
Internal
Sewer Water Total Service
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 243,973 $ 509,515 $ 753,488 $ 93,921
Cash and cash equivalents -
restricted - 61,990 61,990 -
Receivables 340,774 261,622 602,396 149
Due from other funds - 120,000 120,000 -
Due from other governmental units 55,477 - 55,477 -
Inventories 6,388 3,516 9,904 8,767
Prepaids 12,530 5,105 17,635 7,193
Total current assets 659,142 961,748 1,620,890 110,030
Noncurrent assets
Investments - 399,482 399,482 -
Capital assets not being depreciated - 93,700 93,700 -
Capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation 4,066,646 4,341,149 8,407,795 193,641
Total noncurrent assets 4,066,646 4,834,331 8,900,977 193,641
TOTAL ASSETS 4,725,788 5,796,079 10,521,867 303,671
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 68,940 7,164 76,104 90,932
Accrued wages 16,927 10,700 27,627 1,987
Accrued liabilities 1,197 2,194 3,391 -
Current portion of
compensated absences 23,351 13,307 36,658 1,244
Current portion of long-term debt - 145,000 145,000 -
Total current liabilities 110,415 178,365 288,780 94,163

Noncurrent liabilities
Noncurrent portion of
compensated absences 52,010 25,951 77,961 1,805

Noncurrent portion of long-term debt 155,000 155,000
Total noncurrent liabilities 52,010 180,951 232,961 1,805
TOTAL LIABILITIES 162,425 359,316 521,741 95,968
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 4,066,646 4,134,849 8,201,495 193,641
Restricted for debt service - 61,990 61,990 -
Unrestricted 496,717 1,239,924 1,736,641 14,062
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 4,563,363 $ 5,436,763 $ 10,000,126 $ 207,703

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



City of Albion
Proprietary Funds

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Year Ended December 31, 2015

Governmental
Business-type Activities Activities
Internal
Sewer Water Total Service
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 1,125,809 $ 833,878 $ 1,959,687 $ 281,517
Other 3,944 20,067 24,011 2,604
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 1,129,753 853,945 1,983,698 284,121
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 339,226 219,783 559,009 46,764
Fringe benefits 180,041 121,336 301,377 25,816
Contractual services 445,693 63,854 509,547 5,358
Supplies 88,971 129,633 218,604 87,795
Utilities 125,490 98,980 224,470 16,977
Insurance and bonds 24,338 10,540 34,878 15,090
Administrative services 39,892 39,850 79,742 10,900
Building and equipment rental 6,931 21,035 27,966 202
Other 6,440 2,480 8,920 1,181
Depreciation 236,620 212,714 449,334 46,471
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,493,642 920,205 2,413,847 256,554
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (363,889) (66,260) (430,149) 27,567
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest earned 946 5,712 6,658 426
Grants 397,002 6,356 403,358 -
(Loss) on investments - (112) (112) -
Interest expense and fees - (9,256) (9,256) (951)
TOTAL NONOPERATING
REVENUES (EXPENSES) 397,948 2,700 400,648 (525)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS 34,059 (63,560) (29,501) 27,042
TRANSFERS
Transfers out (152,500) (11,739) (164,239) (18,265)
TOTAL NET TRANSFERS (152,500) (11,739) (164,239) (18,265)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (118,441) (75,299) (193,740) 8,777
Net position, beginning of year 4,681,804 5,512,062 10,193,866 198,926
Net position, end of year $ 4,563,363 $ 5,436,763 $ 10,000,126 $ 207,703

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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City of Albion

Proprietary Funds

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31, 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers
Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid for employee benefits/wages

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments of borrowing
State grants
Purchase of capital assets
Interest expense and fees

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers out

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest earned

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Governmental
Business-type Activities Activities
Internal
Sewer Water Total Service
$ 1,125,354 $ 834,039 $ 1,959,393 $ 283,972
(741,562) (484,270) (1,225,832) (139,648)
(529,499) (320,180) (849,679) (69,781)
(145,707) 29,589 (116,118) 74,543
- (145,000) (145,000) (18,284)
397,002 6,356 403,358 -
(25,604) (28,671) (54,275) -
- (9,256) (9,256) (951)
371,398 (176,571) 194,827 (19,235)
(152,500) (11,739) (164,239) (18,265)
946 5,712 6,658 426
74,137 (153,009) (78,872) 37,469
169,836 724,514 894,350 56,452
$ 243,973 $ 571,505 $ 815,478 $ 93,921
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City of Albion
Proprietary Funds
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - CONTINUED

Year Ended December 31, 2015

Governmental
Business-type Activities Activities
Internal
Sewer Water Total Service

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities
Operating income (loss) $ (363,889) $ (66,260) $ (430,149) $ 27,567
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Depreciation 236,620 212,714 449,334 46,471
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable (4,399) (19,906) (24,305) (149)
Due from other funds - (120,000) (120,000) -
Due from other governmental units (55,477) - (55,477) -
Inventories (4,273) 2,523 (1,750) (611)
Prepaids (722) 330 (392) 704
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable 56,686 (751) 55,935 (2,238)
Accrued wages 1,551 2,509 4,060 (250)
Due to other funds (21) - (21) -
Compensated absences (11,783) 18,430 6,647 3,049

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ (145707) § 29,589 $ (116,118) § 74,543
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City of Albion
Fiduciary Funds
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

December 31, 2015

Pension and
Employee
Benefit
Agency Trusts
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 827,227 $ 487,374
Investments - 20,011,610
Interest receivable - 74,024
TOTAL ASSETS 827,227 20,573,008
LIABILITIES
Due to County 10,044 -
Due to State 16,098 -
Due to schools 8,439 -
Due to others 792,646 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 827,227 -0-
NET POSITION
Held in trust for pension and employee benefits $ 20,573,008

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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City of Albion
Fiduciary Funds
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Year Ended December 31, 2015

Pension and
Employee
Benefit
Trusts
ADDITIONS
Investment income
Net investment income $ (522,692)
Contributions 39,001
TOTAL ADDITIONS (483,691)
DEDUCTIONS
Benefit payments 671,096
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (1,154,787)
Net position, beginning of year 21,727,795
Net position, end of year $ 20,573,008

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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ASSETS

Current assets
Cash
Investments
Receivables

Due from other governmental units

Prepaids

Total current assets
Noncurrent assets
Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

City of Albion

Component Units

December 31, 2015

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Due to other governmental units

Accrued interest payable

Unearned revenue

Current portion of compensated absences

Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Net pension liability

Noncurrent portion of compensated absences

Noncurrent portion of long-term debt
Total noncurrent liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

Restricted for community and economic development

Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

Tax
Economic Downtown Increment

Development Development Finance

Corporation Authority Authority
$ 31,620 $ 18,329 $ 68,735
2,316 767 89,381
85,129 13,438 -
- 627 -
119,065 33,161 158,116
26,655 - 160,000
10,400 55,750 -
37,055 55,750 160,000
156,120 88,911 318,116
9,628 1,000 82
2,458 - 5,770
35,856 - -
1,372 - -
29,282 - -
- - 9,472
4,070 - -
82,666 1,000 15,324
- - 15,081
24,142 - -
24,142 -0- 15,081
106,808 1,000 30,405
37,055 55,750 160,000
41,841 - -
(29,584) 32,161 127,711
$ 49,312 $ 87,911 $ 287,711
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Sept. 30, 2015

Albion Total
Housing Component
Commission Units

$ 200,863 $ 319,547
328,403 328,403
2,046 94,510

- 98,567

16,247 16,874
547,559 857,901
19,144 205,799
3,696,326 3,762,476
3,715,470 3,968,275
4,263,029 4,826,176
55,748 55,748
62,943 73,653
56,808 65,036

- 35,856

- 1,372

4,829 34,111
7,538 17,010

- 4,070

132,118 231,108
161,589 161,589
60,307 75,388

- 24,142

221,896 261,119
354,014 492,227
3,715,470 3,968,275
- 41,841

249,293 379,581

$ 3,964,763 $ 4,389,697
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City of Albion

Component Units

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended December 31, 2015

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenues and Changes in Net Position

Tax
Operating Capital Economic Downtown Increment Albion Total
Charges for Grants and Grants and Development Development Finance Housing Component
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions  Corporation Authority Authority Commission Units
Economic Development Corporaton $ 377,664 $§ 117,999 § 259,337 $ -3 (328) $ - $ -3 - (328)
Downtown Development Authority 88,720 - - - - (88,720) - - (88,720)
Tax Increment Finance Authority 170,492 - - - - - (170,492) - (170,492)
Albion Housing Commission 1,475,912 419,045 732,391 254,445 - - - (70,031) (70,031)
TOTALS $ 2,112,788 $§ 537,044 $§ 991,728 $ 254,445 (328) (88,720) (170,492) (70,031) (329,571)
General revenues
Property taxes - 15,732 224,970 - 240,702
Investment earnings 769 250 316 2,358 3,693
Miscellaneous 11,101 - 1,670 6,179 18,950
Total general revenues 11,870 15,982 226,956 8,537 263,345
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 11,542 (72,738) 56,464 (61,494) (66,226)
Restated net position, beginning of year 37,770 160,649 231,247 4,026,257 4,455,923
Net position, end of year $ 49312 § 87911 § 287,711 § 3,964,763 $ 4,389,697

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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City of Albion
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2015

NOTE A: DESCRIPTION OF CITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Albion is located in Calhoun County, Michigan and has a population of approximately 8,616. The
City of Albion operates with a City Manager/Council form of government and provides services to its residents in
many areas including general government, law enforcement, highways and streets, human services, and utilities
services.

The City has six (6) City Council members who are elected for overlapping four (4) year terms. The Council elects
one (1) of its members to serve as Mayor Pro-Tem. A Mayor is elected at large for a two (2) year term. The
Council appoints the City Manager and City Attorney.

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to city governments. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles. The City’s more significant accounting policies are described below.

1. Reporting Entity

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; these financial
statements present the financial activities of the City of Albion (primary government) and its component units.
Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the City’s operations and so
data from these units are combined with data of the primary government. Discretely presented component units,
on the other hand, are reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize
that they are legally separate from the City.

The inclusion of the activities of various agencies is based on the financial accountability of the primary
government, relying on such guidelines as the selection of the governing authority, the designation of
management, the ability to exert significant influence on operations, and the accountability for fiscal matters. The
accountability for fiscal matters considers the possession of the budgetary authority, the responsibility for surplus
or deficit, the controlling of fiscal management’s, and the revenue characteristics, whether a levy or a charge.
Consideration is also given to the scope of public service. The scope of public service considers whether the
activity is for the benefit of the reporting entity and/or its residents and is within the geographic boundaries of the
reporting entity and generally available to its citizens.

2. Blended Component Units

The Albion Building Authority is a five (5) member board governed by the City Council. One member of the board
must be a resident of the Maple Grove Apartments. Its purpose under State Statute is to manage, maintain,
develop, and acquire property for the City. It is reported in the Special Revenue Fund category.

The Albion Trust is governed by a three (3) member board appointed by current board members or by the City. lts
purposes include construction of senior citizen facilities, supporting the debt of the Senior Citizen Facility, and other
betterments to the City. It is reported in the Special Revenue Fund category.

The Albion Public Safety Officers’ Pension Trust is governed by a five (5) member pension board that includes two
(2) individuals chosen by the Mayor and the City Council. Its purpose is to operate the retirement system. It is
reported in the Fiduciary Fund category.

3. Discretely Presented Component Units

The component units are reported in a separate column to emphasize that, while legally separate, the City remains
financially accountable for these entities or the nature and significance of the relationship between the entities and
the City is such that exclusion of the entities would render the financial statements misleading or incomplete.
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City of Albion
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

NOTE A: DESCRIPTION OF CITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

3. Discretely Presented Component Units - continued

The financial statements contain the following discretely presented component units:

a. Economic Development Corporation - The Economic Development Corporation (EDC) was created to
provide means and methods for the encouragement and assistance of industrial and commercial
enterprises in relocating, purchasing, constructing, improving, or expanding within the City so as to provide
needed services and facilities of such enterprises to the residents of the City. The EDC is governed jointly
by a nine (9) member board with the Tax Increment Finance Authority. The financial statements of the
EDC are included in the City’s financial statements and are not audited separately.

b. Downtown Development Authority - The Downtown Development Authority (DDA) was created to correct
and prevent deterioration in the downtown district, encourage historical preservation, and to promote
economic growth within the downtown district. The DDA’s governing body, which consists of 9-12
members, is selected by the Mayor and City Council. In addition, the DDA’s budget is subject to approval
by the City Council. The financial statements of the DDA are included in the City’s financial statements
and are not audited separately.

c. Tax Increment Finance Authority - The Tax Increment Finance Authority (TIFA) was created to provide
means and methods for the encouragement and assistance of industrial and commercial enterprises in
relocating, purchasing, constructing, improving, or expanding within the City so as to provide needed
services and facilities of such enterprises to the residents of the City. The TIFA is governed jointly by a
nine (9) member board with the Economic Development Corporation. The TIFA also acts as an agent for
the Revolving Loan Fund, which is included as a Special Revenue Fund of the City. The financial
statements of the TIFA are included in the City’s financial statements and are not audited separately.

d. Albion Housing Commission - The Albion Housing Commission (the Commission) was established by City
Council to provide low rent housing. The Commission’s governing body, which consists of five (5)
members, is selected by the Mayor and City Council. The financial activity has been included as part of
the City’s financial statements. The financial statements of the Commission are audited separately and
are available by contacting the Commission at 1300 Cooper Street, Albion, Michigan 49224.

4. Basis of Presentation

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of net position and the statement of activities (the government-wide financial statements) present
information for the primary government and its component units as a whole. All nonfiduciary activities of the
primary government are included (i.e., fiduciary fund activities are not included in the government-wide financial
statements). For the most part, interfund activity has been eliminated in the preparation of these statements.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities presents the direct functional expenses of the primary government and its component
units and the program revenues that support them. Direct expenses are specifically associated with a service,
program, or department and are therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues are
associated with specific functions and include charges to recipients of goods or services and grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of that function. Revenues that
are not required to be presented as program revenues are general revenues. This includes all taxes, interest, and
unrestricted State revenue sharing payments and other general revenues and shows how governmental functions
are either self-financing or supported by general revenues.
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CONTINUED

4. Basis of Presentation - continued

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The fund financial statements present the City’s individual major funds and aggregated nonmajor funds. Separate
financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the
latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and the
major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

a. The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government except for those that are required to be accounted for in another fund.

b. The Albion Trust Fund is used to provide grant dollars for City improvements as a whole and to set
dollars aside for the Maple Grove Apartment Facility.

c. The Solid Waste Fund is used to account for revenues relating to trash collections, and disposal
services to the public.

d. The Sidewalks Program Fund is a capital projects fund which is used to account for sidewalk repair and
replacement activity.

e. The MDOT Street Reconstruction Fund is a capital projects fund which is used to account for funds
provided by MDOT for street improvements.

The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

a. The Sewer Fund is used to account for the operations required to provide sewer services to the general
public. The costs (expenses, including depreciation) are financed or recovered primarily through user
charges.

b. The Water Fund is used to account for the operations required to provide water services to the general
public. The costs (expenses, including depreciation) are financed or recovered primarily through user
charges.

Additionally, the City reports an internal service fund to account for the management of equipment pool services
provided to other departments on a cost reimbursement basis.

The City also reports agency funds to account for assets held by the City as the trustee or as the agent for
others. Agency Funds are, by nature, custodial; therefore, operation results are not measured.

The City also reports pension trust funds to account for the activities of the Public Safety Officers’ Pension, a
defined-benefit pension plan, which accumulates resources for retirement benefit payments to qualified
employees and the activities of the Retiree Health Care Fund, which accumulates resources for post-
employment health care benefits to qualified employees.
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5. Measurement Focus

The government-wide, proprietary, and non-agency fiduciary fund financial statements are presented using the
economic resources measurement focus, similar to that used by business enterprises or not-for-profit
organizations. Because another measurement focus is used in the governmental fund financial statements,
reconciliations to the government-wide financial statements are provided that explain the differences in detail.

All governmental funds are presented using the current financial resources measurement focus. With this
measurement focus, only current assets, deferred outflows of resources, current liabilities, and deferred inflows
of resources generally are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present
increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing
uses) in fund balance.

There is no measurement focus for Agency Funds since assets equal liabilities.

6. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the
financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless of the
measurement focus applied.

All governmental and similar trust funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under
this method, revenues are recognized when they become susceptible to accrual (when they become both
“measurable” and “available to finance expenditures of the current period”). The length of time used for “available”
for purposes of revenue recognition in the governmental fund financial statements is 60 days. Revenues that are
considered measurable but not available are recorded as receivable and unavailable revenue. Significant
revenues susceptible to accrual are special assessments and certain intergovernmental revenues. Expenditures
are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related fund liability is incurred,
except for interest on long-term debt which is recorded when due.

All proprietary and similar trust funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are
recognized when they are earned, and their expenses are recognized when they are incurred.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Enterprise Funds are
charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the costs of sales
and services, administrative expenses, and other costs of running the activity. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Iffwhen, both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

7. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The General and major Special Revenue Fund budgets shown as required supplementary information were
prepared on the same modified accrual basis used to reflect actual results. The City employs the following
procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements.

a. Six weeks prior to December 31, the City Manager submits to City Council the proposed operating

budgets for the fiscal year commencing the following January 1. The operating budgets include proposed
expenditures and resources to finance them.
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7. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting - continued

b. A Public Hearing is conducted to obtain taxpayers’ comments.

c. On or before the second regular council meeting in December, the budget is legally enacted through
passage of a resolution.

d. The budget is legally adopted at the total expenditure level for the General Fund and Special Revenue
Funds; however, they are maintained at the account level for control purposes.

e. The City does not employ encumbrance accounting as an extension of formal budgetary integration in
the governmental funds. Appropriations unused at December 31 are not carried forward to the following
fiscal year.

f. Budgeted amounts are reported as originally adopted or amended by the City Council during the year.
Individual amendments were appropriately approved by the City Council as required.

8. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of checking, savings, money market, certificates of deposit with a maturity from
date of purchase of 90 days or less, and pooled investment fund accounts. The cash equivalents are recorded at
cost, which approximates market value.

9. Investments

Investments consist of certificates of deposit, Municipal Securities, Corporate Bonds and Notes, and Michigan
CLASS funds with original maturities of greater than 90 days. Investments are recorded at market value in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for
External Investment Pools.

10. Due from Other Governmental Units

Due from other governmental units consists of amounts due from the State of Michigan and amounts due from
component units for various payments and grants and accounts receivable for charges for services provided to
local governmental units.

11. Receivables

Receivables consist of amounts due related to charges for services, interest receivable, and other amounts owed
to the City at year-end.

12. Property Tax

The City of Albion bills and collects its own property taxes and also taxes for other governmental units. The
City’'s property tax revenue recognition policy and related tax calendar disclosures are highlighted in the
following paragraph:

Property taxes are levied by the City of Albion on July 1 and are payable without penalty through August 10. The
July 1 levy is composed of the City’s millage, delinquent assessments, and State Education Tax. All real property
taxes not paid to the City by February 28 are turned over to the Calhoun County Treasurer for collection. The
Calhoun County Treasurer purchases the receivables of all taxing districts on any delinquent real property taxes.
Delinquent personal property taxes receivable are retained by the City for subsequent collection.

-22-



City of Albion
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015

NOTE A: DESCRIPTION OF CITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

12. Property Tax - continued

The City is permitted by charter to levy taxes up to 12.50 mills ($12.50 per $1,000 of taxable valuation) for general
governmental services other than the payment of Debt Service Fund expenditures. For the year ended December
31, 2015, the City levied 11.9736 mills per $1,000 of taxable valuation for general governmental services. In
addition, the City levied 3.0000 mills for street maintenance, 2.0000 mills for solid waste services, 1.5200 mills for
debt service payments, and 1.5000 mills for recreational services. The total taxable value for the 2015 levy for
property within the City was $90,482,882.

13. Income Tax Revenues

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 22, Accounting for Taxpayer - Assessed Tax Revenues in Governmental
Funds, the City has recognized taxpayer-assessed taxes, net of estimated refunds, as revenue in the accounting
period in which they become susceptible to accrual (i.e., measurable and available to finance expenditures of the
fiscal period). The City has calculated this amount based on the income tax collections made within 60 days after
year end that relate to the prior years. Estimated refunds of these amounts are considered to be immaterial.

14. Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method. Inventory consists of
expendable supplies held for consumption. Inventories are capitalized under the consumption method, whereby
expenditures are capitalized as inventory until used. Reported inventories in governmental funds are equally offset
by nonspendable fund balance, which indicates that they do not constitute “available expendable resources” even
though they are a component of net current assets.

15. Prepaids

Prepaid expenditures in the governmental funds, such as insurance premiums, which are expected to be written
off within the next fiscal year, are included in net current assets. Reported prepaid expenditures are equally offset
by nonspendable fund balance, which indicates they do not constitute “available spendable resources” even
though they are a component of net current assets.

16. Compensated Absences

City employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts. In the event of termination, an employee
is paid for accumulated vacation days according to contract or personnel policies. In the event of termination by
retirement or death, an employee is paid for accumulated sick days according to contract or personnel policies.

17. Interfund Transactions

During the course of normal operations, the City has numerous transactions between funds, including
expenditures and transfers of resources to provide services, construct assets, and service debt. The
accompanying financial statements generally reflect such transactions as operating transfers. Transfers
between governmental or proprietary funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to the government-wide
financial statements.

The Internal Service Fund (Equipment Pool) records charges for services provided to various City departments
and funds as operating revenue. All City funds record these payments as operating expenditures/expenses.
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18. Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded (net of accumulated depreciation, if applicable) in the government-wide financial
statements under the governmental, business-type, and component unit activities columns, respectively.
Capital assets are those with an initial individual cost of $5,000 or more and an estimated useful life of more
than one year. Capital assets are not recorded in the governmental funds. Instead, capital acquisition and
construction are reflected as expenditures in governmental funds, and the related assets are reported in the
government-wide financial statements. All purchased capital assets are valued at cost where historical records
are available and at an estimated historical cost where no historical records exist. Donated capital assets are
valued at their estimated fair market value on the date received.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset
lives are not capitalized. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Buildings and improvements 5-50 years
Equipment and furniture 3 - 50 years
Infrastructure - streets and bridges 10 - 30 years
Vehicles 5-15years
Sewer system 20 - 50 years
Water system 10 - 50 years

19. Long-term Obligations

Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are recognized as a liability in the government-wide financial
statements and proprietary fund types when incurred. The portion of those liabilities expected to be paid within the
next year is a current liability with the remaining amounts shown as noncurrent.

Long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due or when resources have been
accumulated in a Debt Service Fund for payment early in the following year. For other long-term obligations,
only that portion expected to be financed from expendable available financial resources is reported as a fund
liability of a governmental fund.

20. Restricted Net Position

Restrictions of net position shown in the government-wide financial statements indicate that restrictions imposed
by the funding source or some other outside source which precludes their use for unrestricted purposes.

21. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets and liabilities, the statement of financial position or balance sheet will, when applicable,
report separate sections for deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. Deferred outflows
of resources, a separate financial statement element, represents a consumption of net position or fund balance,
respectively, that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until that time. Deferred inflows of resources, a separate financial statement element,
represents an acquisition of net position or fund balance, respectively, that applies to a future period and so will
not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.
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21. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources - continued

The City has several items that qualify for reporting in these categories. These items correspond to the City’s
net pension asset and are related to differences between expected and actual experience, changes in
assumptions, differences between projected and actual pension plan investment earnings, and contributions
made subsequent to the measurement date. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an outflow or
inflow of resources in the period to which they apply. The City has also recorded deferred inflows of resources
in the fund financial statements. Governmental funds report unavailable revenues resulting from property taxes
that have been levied on July 1 to support the current year’s budget, and from intergovernmental revenue from
the State of Michigan. Amounts not collected within sixty (60) days after year-end are considered unavailable
revenue in the fund financial statements.

22. Unearned Revenue

The City reports unearned revenue in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned.

23. Net Pension Asset

The net pension asset is deemed to be a noncurrent asset and is recognized on the City’s government-wide
financial statements.

24. Comparative Data

Comparative data for the prior year has not been presented in the accompanying financial statements since their
inclusion would make the statements unduly complex and difficult to read.

NOTE B: CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS

The City deposits consist of a common checking account and various savings, money market, checking, and
pooled investment fund accounts maintained by individual funds and are reported as cash, cash equivalents, and
investments in the financial statements.

In accordance with Michigan Compiled Laws, the City is authorized to invest in the following investment vehicles:

a. Bonds, securities, and other obligations of the United States or an agency or instrumentality of the United
States.

b. Certificates of deposit, savings accounts, deposit accounts, or depository receipts of a State or nationally
chartered bank or a State or Federally chartered savings and loan association, savings bank, or credit union
whose deposits are insured by an agency of the United Sates government and which maintains a principal
office or branch office located in this State under the laws of this State or the United States, but only if the
bank, savings and loan association, savings bank or credit union is eligible to be a depository of surplus funds
belonging to the State under Section 6 of 1855 PA 105, MCL 21.146.

c. Commercial paper rated at the time of purchase within the three (3) highest classifications established by
not less than two (2) standard rating services and which matures not more than 270 days after the date of
purchase.

d. The United States government or federal agency obligations repurchase agreements.

e. Bankers’ acceptances of United States banks.
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NOTE B: CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

f.  Mutual funds composed of investment vehicles, which are legal for direct investment by local units of
government in Michigan.

Deposits

As of December 31, 2015, the carrying amounts and bank balances for each type of bank account are as follows:

Carrying Bank
ACCOUNT TYPE Amount Balance
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Checking and savings $ 3,838,417 $ 3,951,603
Certificates of deposit 1,200,503 1,200,503
Total Primary Government 5,038,920 5,152,106
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
Checking 904,091 856,382
COMPONENT UNITS
Checking and savings 319,302 319,302
Certificates of deposit 328,403 328,403
Total Component Units 647,705 647,705

TOTAL REPORTING ENTITY $ 6,590,716 $ 6,656,193

The primary government and component units’ cash and cash equivalents captions on the basic financial
statements include $377 and $245, respectively, of imprest cash.

Deposits of the City are at federally insured banks located in the State of Michigan with all accounts maintained in
the name of the City. As of December 31, 2015, the City accounts were insured by the FDIC for $1,720,289 and
the amount of $4,935,904 was uninsured and uncollateralized.

Investments

As of December 31, 2015, the carrying amounts and market values for each investment are as follows:

Weighted
Carrying Market Average
INVESTMENT TYPE Amount Value Maturity
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Federal National Mortgage Association $ 24,880 $ 24,880 2.93 years
Municipal Investments 465,000 465,000 N/A
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. 24,799 24,799 2.99 years
Federal Farm Credit Bureau 50,001 50,001 2.95 years
Michigan CLASS 315,489 315,489 N/A
International Bank Bonds 61,941 61,941 3.29 years
Total Primary Government 942,110 942,110
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Investments - continued

Weighted
Carrying Market Average
INVESTMENT TYPE - CONTINUED Amount Value Maturity
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
Federal National Mortgage Association $ 35,137 $ 35,137 17.64 years
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. 1,048,462 1,048,462 8.07 years
Governmental National Mortgage Association 564,011 564,011 42.98 years
Michigan CLASS 25,813 25,813 N/A
U.S. Treasury Obligations 1,630,340 1,630,340 22.95 years
Corporate Bonds and Notes 5,994,029 5,994,029 10.40 years
Common Equity Securities 10,070,804 10,070,804 N/A
Fixed Income Mutual Funds 668,310 668,310 N/A
Uncategorized pooled investment funds 385,214 385,214 N/A
Total Fiduciary Funds 20,422,120 20,422,120
TOTAL REPORTING ENTITY $ 21,364,230 $ 21,364,230

As of December 31, 2015, the credit ratings for the City of Albion’s investments are as follows:

Carrying Market
Standard and Poor's Rating Amount Value
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
AAA $ 377,430 $ 377,430
AA+ 99,680 99,680
Not Rated 465,000 465,000
Total Primary Government 942,110 942,110
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
AAA 1,021,106 1,021,106
AA 2,001,368 2,001,368
A 2,940,785 2,940,785
BBB 4,737,932 4,737,932
BB 81,688 81,688
Not Rated 9,639,241 9,639,241
Total Fiduciary Funds 20,422,120 20,422,120

TOTAL REPORTING ENTITY $ 21,364,230 $ 21,364,230

Credit risk
State law limits investments in certain types of investments to a prime or better rating issued by nationally

recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSRO’s). As of December 31, 2015, rating information on the City’s
investments is presented above.
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Interest rate risk

The City will minimize interest rate risk, which is the risk that the market value of securities in the portfolio will fall
due to changes in market interest rates, by structuring the investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet
cash requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell securities in the open market and
investing operating funds primarily in shorter-term securities, liquid asset funds, money market mutual funds, or
similar investment pools and limiting the average maturity in accordance with the City’s cash requirements.

Concentration of credit risk

The City will minimize concentration of credit risk, which is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the City’s
investment in a single issuer, by diversifying the investment portfolio so that the impact of potential losses from any
one type of security or issuer will be minimized.

Custodial credit risk

The City will minimize custodial credit risk, which is the risk of loss due to the failure of the security issuer or
backer, by limiting investments to the types of securities authorized by the Council and pre-qualifying the
financial institutions, broker/dealers, intermediaries and advisors with which the City will do business in
accordance with Council approved policy.

The cash, cash equivalents, and investments referred to above have been reported in either the cash and cash
equivalents or investments captions on the basic financial statements, based upon criteria disclosed in Note A.
The following summarizes the categorization of these amounts as of December 31, 2015:

Primary Component Fiduciary Reporting
Government Units Funds Entity
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,984,128 $ 319,547 $ 1,314,601 $ 5,618,276
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 61,990 - - 61,990
Investments - current 1,535,807 328,403 20,011,610 21,875,820
Investments - noncurrent 399,482 - - 399,482

$ 5,981,407 $ 647,950 $ 21,326,211 $ 27,955,568

NOTE C: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - RESTRICTED

The following summarizes the restricted cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2015:
Bond Reserve

Enterprise Funds $ 61,990
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NOTE D: INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The following schedule details primary government and component unit interfund receivables and payables at
December 31, 2015:

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Due to Water Fund from:
Solid Waste Fund $ 120,000

Amounts appearing as interfund payables and receivables arise from two types of transactions. One type of
transaction is where a fund will pay for a good or service that at least a portion of the benefit belongs to another
fund. The second type of transaction is where one fund provides a good or service to another fund. Balances
at the end of the year are for transfers that have not cleared as of the balance sheet date.

NOTE E: INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Permanent reallocations of resources between funds of the reporting entity are classified as interfund transfers.
For the purpose of the statement of activities, all interfund transfers between individual governmental funds and
business-type funds have been eliminated.

Transfers to General Fund from:
Nonmajor governmental funds $ 22,000

Transfers to nonmajor governmental funds from:

General Fund $ 53,377
Albion Trust Fund 150,000
Solid Waste Fund 6,500
Sidewalk Program Fund 14,125
Nonmajor governmental funds 171,284
Sewer Fund 152,500
Water Fund 11,739
Internal Service Fund 18,265

$ 577,790

Transfers to MDOT Street Reconstruction Fund from:
Nonmajor governmental funds $ 232,771

Transfers are used to: (1) fund current operations; (2) cover bond and other debt payments.
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Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2015, was as follows:

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Governmental activities
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress

Subtotal

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings and improvements
Infrastructure
Equipment and furniture
Vehicles

Subtotal

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Infrastructure
Equipment and furniture
Vehicles

Subtotal
Net capital assets being depreciated

Capital assets, net

Depreciation expense was charged to the following governmental activities:

General government

Public safety
Public works

Recreation and cultural

Restated
Balance Balance
Jan. 1, 2015 Additions Deletions Dec. 31, 2015
$ 457,705 $ - 9% - $ 457,705
47,761 284,456 - 332,217
505,466 284,456 -0- 789,922
6,402,597 - - 6,402,597
5,430,128 790,416 - 6,220,544
1,030,965 - - 1,030,965
2,615,834 74,193 - 2,690,027
15,479,524 864,609 -0- 16,344,133
(2,114,743) (165,847) - (2,280,590)
(1,477,747) (240,683) - (1,718,430)
(941,693) (17,838) - (959,531)
(1,469,492) (130,288) - (1,599,780)
(6,003,675) (554,656) -0- (6,558,331)
9,475,849 309,953 -0- 9,785,802
$ 9,981,315 § 594409 $ -0- $ 10,575,724
$ 45,852
180,582
243,018
Community and economic development 83,604
1,600
Total depreciation expense $ 554,656
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PRIMARY GOVERNMENT - CONTINUED

Balance Balance
Jan. 1, 2015 Additions Deletions Dec. 31, 2015
Business-type activities
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 93,700 $ - $ - 9 93,700
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings and improvements 11,222,852 - - 11,222,852
Equipment 1,043,619 5,700 - 1,049,319
Water system 4,551,609 22,971 - 4,574,580
Sewer system 2,255,491 25,604 - 2,281,095
Vehicles 461,515 - - 461,515
Subtotal 19,535,086 54,275 -0- 19,589,361
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (5,871,926) (270,943) - (6,142,869)
Equipment (949,929) (18,518) - (968,447)
Water system (2,714,559) (109,450) - (2,824,009)
Sewer system (787,982) (39,579) - (827,561)
Vehicles (407,836) (10,844) - (418,680)
Subtotal (10,732,232) (449,334) -0- (11,181,566)
Net capital assets being depreciated 8,802,854 (395,059) -0- 8,407,795
Capital assets, net $ 8896554 $§ (395,059) $ -0- $ 8,501,495

Depreciation expense was charged to the following business-type activities:

Sewer $ 236,620
Water 212,714
Total depreciation expense $ 449,334
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COMPONENT UNITS
Restated
Balance Balance
Jan. 1, 2015 Additions Deletions Dec. 31, 2015
Component unit - EDC
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 26,655 - - 93 26,655
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings 20,000 - - 20,000
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings (8,800) (800) - (9,600)
Net capital assets being depreciated 11,200 (800) -0- 10,400
Capital assets, net $ 37,855 (800) -0- $ 37,055
Component unit - DDA

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings $ 61,588 - -3 61,588
Infrastructure 557,494 - - 557,494
Subtotal 619,082 -0- -0- 619,082
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (61,588) - - (61,588)
Infrastructure (445,995) (55,749) - (501,744)
Subtotal (507,583) (55,749) -0- (563,332)
Capital assets, net $ 111,499 (55,749) -0- $ 55,750
Component unit - TIFA
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 160,000 - -9 160,000
Component unit - Housing Commission
Capital assets not being depreciated $ 19,144 - - % 19,144
Capital assets being depreciated 14,386,715 299,354 (14,768) 14,671,301
Less accumulated depreciation: (10,640,679) (348,082) 13,786 (10,974,975)
Net capital assets being depreciated 3,746,036 (48,728) (982) 3,696,326
Capital assets, net $ 3,765,180 (48,728) (982) $ 3,715,470
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NOTE G: LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt (including current portion) of the City for the year ended
December 31, 2015.

Amounts
Balance Balance Due Within
Jan. 1, 2015 Additions Reductions Dec. 31,2015 One Year

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmental activities

2010 General Obligation Bonds $ 1,525,000 $ - $ (120,000) $ 1,405,000 $ 125,000
2013 Refunding Bonds 400,000 - (130,000) 270,000 130,000
Installment purchase agreement 18,284 - (18,284) -0- -
EPA landfill liability 85,871 - (5,482) 80,389 5,124
Building Authority bonds 900,000 - (80,000) 820,000 85,000
Land contracts 126,015 - (27,886) 98,129 12,056
Compensated absences 252,680 181,306 (147,169) 286,817 116,005
3,307,850 181,306 (528,821) 2,960,335 473,185
Business-type activities
2013 Revenue Refunding Bonds 445,000 - (145,000) 300,000 145,000
Compensated absences 107,972 56,201 (49,554) 114,619 36,658
552,972 56,201 (194,554) 414,619 181,658
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 3,860,822 237,507 (723,375) 3,374,954 654,843
COMPONENT UNITS
Economic Development Corporation
ABA loan 32,089 - (3,877) 28,212 4,070
Tax Increment Finance Authority
Compensated absences 19,451 15,327 (10,225) 24,553 9,472
Albion Housing Commission
Compensated absences 61,579 13,650 (7,384) 67,845 7,538
TOTAL COMPONENT UNITS 113,119 28,977 (21,486) 120,610 21,080
TOTAL REPORTING ENTITY $ 3973941 $ 266,484 $§ (744,861) $ 3,495564 $ 675,923

Significant details regarding outstanding long-term debt (including current portion) are presented below:
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

2010 General Obligation Limited Tax Bonds Payable

$2,000,000 General Obligation Limited Tax Bonds Series 2010 dated December 9, 2010, due
in annual installments ranging from $125,000 to $165,000 through October 1, 2025, with
interest ranging from 3.00 to 4.63 percent, payable semi-annually. $ 1,405,000
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NOTE G: LONG-TERM DEBT - CONTINUED

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT - CONTINUED

EPA Landfill Liability

The City is liable for half the operations and maintenance costs for the landfill cleanup, with
annual installments ranging from $2,040 to $40,567 through 2028. $ 80,389

2013 General Obligation Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds Payable

$640,000 General Obligation Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds Series 2013 dated February 5,
2013, due in annual installments ranging from $130,000 to $140,000 through October 1, 2017,
with interest of 2.08 percent, payable semi-annually. $ 270,000

2013 Revenue Refunding Bonds

$620,000 Revenue Bonds dated February 5, 2013, due in annual installments ranging from
$145,000 to $155,000 through October 1, 2017, with interest of 2.08 percent, payable semi-

annually. $ 300,000

Land Contracts

$207,000 Land contract dated June 30, 2006, due in annual installments ranging from $5,750
to $14,396 through July 1, 2023, with interest at 3.0 percent, payable annually. $ 98,129

Building Authority Bonds

$700,000 Building Authority Bonds dated January 15, 2009, due in annual installments ranging
from $30,000 to $65,000 through October 1, 2028, with interest ranging from 4.75 to 6.25
percent, payable semi-annually. $ 590,000

$500,000 Building Authority Bonds dated July 17, 2009, due in annual installments ranging

from $55,000 to $60,000 through April 1, 2019, with interest ranging from 4.5 to 5.0 percent,
payable semi-annually. 230,000

$ 820,000

Advance Refunding - Prior

On February 5, 2013, the City defeased the 1997 General Obligation Bonds which are due and payable October
1, 2014 through October 1, 2017. This was accomplished by establishing an irrevocable trust with an escrow
agent composed of cash and U.S. government securities sufficient to meet the applicable principal and interest
obligations. The City issued General Obligation 2013 Refunding Bonds in the amount of $640,000 to provide
resources to fund the escrow amounts and pay the costs of issuance of the refunding bonds. Accordingly, the
trust account assets and liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in the City’s financial statements. At
December 31, 2015, bonds due and payable October 1, 2016 through October 1, 2017 for the 1997 General
Obligation Bonds in the amount of $270,000 are considered defeased.
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NOTE G: LONG-TERM DEBT - CONTINUED

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT - CONTINUED

Advance Refunding - Prior - continued

On February 5, 2013, the City defeased the 1997 Water Supply and Sewage Disposal System Revenue Bonds
which are due and payable October 1, 2014 through October 1, 2017. This was accomplished by establishing
an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent composed of cash and U.S. government securities sufficient to meet
the applicable principal and interest obligations. The City issued 2013 Water Supply and Sewage Disposal
System Revenue Refunding Bonds in the amount of $620,000 to provide resources to fund the escrow amounts
and pay the costs of issuance of the refunding bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and liabilities for the
defeased bonds are not included in the City’s financial statements. At December 31, 2015, bonds due and
payable October 1, 2016 through October 1, 2017 for the 1997 Water Supply and Sewage Disposal System
Revenue Bonds in the amount of $300,000 are considered defeased.

Compensated Absences

Individual employees have vested rights upon termination of employment to receive payments for unused sick and
vacation. The dollar amounts of these vested rights include related payroll taxes, which have been accrued on the
government-wide financial statements. The total liability amounted to $493,834 at December 31, 2015. Of this
amount, $286,817, $114,619, and $92,398 are shown as accrued liabilities within the governmental activities,
business-type activities, and component units, respectively, in accordance with criteria disclosed in Note A.

COMPONENT UNITS - DISCRETELY PRESENTED

ABA Loan

$57,246 Albion Building Authority Loan to the Economic Development Corporation dated May

23, 2007, due in annual installments ranging from $4,070 to $5,720 through January 10,

2021, with interest at 5.0 percent, payable annually. $ 28212

The annual requirements to pay the debt principal and interest outstanding for the Bonds and other obligations
are as follows:

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
2010 General Obligation
Year Ending Limited Tax Bonds 2013 Refunding Bonds
December 31, Principal Interest Principal Interest
2016 $ 125,000 $ 58,600 $ 130,000 $ 5,616
2017 125,000 54,850 140,000 2,912
2018 130,000 49,850 - -
2019 135,000 44,650 - -
2020 135,000 39,250 - -
2021-2025 755,000 105,919 - -

$ 1,405,000 $ 353,119 $ 270,000 $ 8,528
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NOTE G: LONG-TERM DEBT - CONTINUED

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT - CONTINUED

Year Ending Revenue Bonds
December 31, Principal Interest
2016 $ 145,000 $ 6,240
2017 155,000 3,224
$ 300,000 $ 9,464
Year Ending EPA Landfill Liability Land Contracts
December 31, Principal Interest Principal Interest
2016 $ 5,124 $ 2,562 $ 12,056 $ 2,944
2017 4,789 2,394 12,418 2,582
2018 5,057 2,528 12,790 2,210
2019 3,505 1,753 13,174 1,826
2020 3,276 1,638 13,569 1,431
2021-2025 13,847 6,923 34,122 1,801
2026-2028 44,791 22,395 - -
$ 80,389 $ 40,193 $ 98,129 $ 12,794

Year Ending Building Authority Bonds

December 31, Principal Interest
2016 $ 85,000 $ 43,990
2017 90,000 40,090
2018 95,000 35,603
2019 95,000 30,678
2020 40,000 27,253
2021-2025 235,000 100,125
2026-2028 180,000 23,098

$ 820,000 $ 300,837

COMPONENT UNITS
Year Ending ABA Loan
December 31, Principal Interest
2016 $ 4,070 $ 1,411
2017 4,274 1,207
2018 4,488 993
2019 4,712 769
2020 4,948 533
2021 5,720 286
$ 28,212 $ 5,199
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NOTE H: RETIREMENT PLANS

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT (EXCEPT PUBLIC SAFETY) AND HOUSING COMMISSION

Plan Description

The City participates in the Michigan Municipal Employees Retirement System (MERS), an agent multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan that covers all eligible full-time employees (other than public safety
employees) of the City. The system provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and
their beneficiaries. The Michigan Municipal Employees Retirement System issues a publicly available financial
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the system. That report
may be obtained by writing to the System at 1134 Municipal Way, Lansing, Michigan 48917.

Funding Policy

The obligation to contribute to and maintain the system for these employees was established by the City Council
and by negotiation with the City’s collective bargaining units. The plan requires no contribution from the
employees.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

For the purposes of measuring the net pension liability (asset), deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of
the Municipal Employees Retirement System (MERS) of Michigan and additions to/deductions from MERS’
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by MERS. For this
purposes, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Benefits Provided

Benefits provided include plans with multipliers ranging from 1.50% to 2.25%.
Vesting period of 6 to 10 years.

Normal retirement age is 60 with early retirement at 55 with 25 years of service or reduced early retirement at 50
with 25 years of service or 55 with 15 years of service.

Final average compensation is calculated based on 5 years. Member contributions are not required.

At the December 31, 2014, valuation date, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries receiving benefits 108
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 17
Active employees 27

Total employees covered by MERS 152
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NOTE H: RETIREMENT PLANS - CONTINUED

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT (EXCEPT PUBLIC SAFETY) AND HOUSING COMMISSION - CONTINUED
Contributions

Article 9, Section 24 of the State of Michigan constitution requires that financial benefits arising on account of
employee service rendered in each year be funded during that year. Accordingly, MERS retains an independent
actuary to determine the annual contribution. The employer is required to contribute amounts at least equal to
the actuarially determined rate, as established by the MERS retirement board. The actuarially determined rate
is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by plan members during the year,
with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The employer may establish contribution
rates to be paid by its covered employees.

Employer contributions range from 3.79% to 11.10% based on annual payroll for open divisions.

Net Pension (Asset)

The employer's Net Pension (Asset) was measured as of December 31, 2014, and the total pension liability
used to calculate the Net Pension (Asset) was determined by an annual actuarial valuation as of that date.
Changes in the net pension asset during the measurement year were as follows:

Increase (Decrease)
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension

Liability Net Position Liability (Asset)
(a) (b) (a)-(b)
Balances at December 31, 2013 $ 12,923,455 $ 13,952,956 $ (1,029,501)
Service Cost 111,241 - 111,241
Interest on Total Pension Liability 1,027,804 - 1,027,804
Employer contributions - 29,258 (29,258)
Net investment income - 863,867 (863,867)
Benefit payments, including employee refunds (1,041,700) (1,041,700) -0-
Administrative expense - (31,504) 31,504
Other changes (3) - (3)
Net changes 97,342 (180,079) 277,421
Balances as of December 31, 2014 $ 13,020,797 $ 13,772,877 $ (752,080)
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PRIMARY GOVERNMENT (EXCEPT PUBLIC SAFETY) AND HOUSING COMMISSION - CONTINUED

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the employer recognized pension expense of $111,328. The employer
reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments $ 195,351
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date* 33,038
Total $ 228,389

*  The amount reported as deferred outflows of resources resulting from contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as an addition in the Net Pension (Asset) for the year ended
December 31, 2015.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
will be recognized in pension expense as follows. These amounts are exclusive of the employer contributions to
the plan made subsequent to the measurement date ($33,038), which will impact the net pension asset in fiscal
year 2016, rather than pension expense.

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension
expense as follow:

Year Ending Pension

December 31, Expense
2016 $ 48,838
2017 48,838
2018 48,838
2019 48,837

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the December 31, 2014, annual actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation: 3%-4%

Salary increases: 4.5% in the long-term (1%, 2%, and 3% for calendar years 2014, 2015, and 2016,
respectively).

Investment rate of return: 8.0%, net of investment expenses, including inflation.

Although no specific price inflation assumptions are needed for the valuation, the 4.5% long-term wage
inflation assumption would be consistent with a price inflation of 3%-4%.
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PRIMARY GOVERNMENT (EXCEPT PUBLIC SAFETY) AND HOUSING COMMISSION - CONTINUED

Actuarial Assumptions - continued

Mortality rates used were based on the 1994 Group Annuity Mortality Table of a 50% Male and 50%
Female blend. For disabled retirees, the regular mortality table is used with a 10-year set forward in ages
to reflect the higher expected mortality rates of disabled members.

The actuarial assumptions used in valuation were based on the results of the most recent actuarial experience
study in 2008.

Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability is 8.25%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumes that employer and employee contributions will be made at the rates

agreed upon for employees and the actuarially determined rates for employers.

Projected Cash Flows

Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to pay all
projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine
the total pension liability.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a model method in
which the best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of investment and
administrative expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of
arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Target Allocation Real Rate of Return
Global Equity 57.50% 5.02%
Global Fixed Income 20.0% 2.18%
Real Assets 12.5% 4.23%
Diversifying Strategies 10.0% 6.56%

Sensitivity of the Net Position Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the Net Pension Liability (Asset) of the employer, calculated using the discount rates
8.25%, as well as what the employer’s Net Position Liability (Asset) would be using a discount rate that is 1% lower
(7.25%) or 1% higher (9.25%) than the current rate.

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

Net pension liability (asset) $ 453,585 $ (752,080) $ (1,793,031)
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NOTE H: RETIREMENT PLANS - CONTINUED

PUBLIC SAFETY

Plan Description

The City participates in the Public Safety Officers’ Pension Fund, a single-employer defined benefit pension plan
that covers all eligible full-time public safety employees of the City. The system provides retirement, disability,
and death benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries. The Public Safety Officers’ Pension Fund does not
issue a stand-alone financial report.

Funding Policy

The obligation to contribute to and maintain the system for these employees was established by the City Council
and by negotiation with the City’s collective bargaining units. The plan requires a 2% contribution from the
employees.

Benefits Provided

Straight life pension equals 2.65% of average final compensation (AFC) times all years of service. AFC is
computed on the highest consecutive 36 months of the last 60 months.

Eligibility for retirement is effective after 25 or more years of service or age 60 regardless of service.

At the December 31, 2015 valuation date, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries receiving benefits 31
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 1
Active employees 18

Total employees covered by MERS 50

Deferred Retirement

Members are eligible for benefits with 10 years of service. Benefits are computed as service retirement but based
upon service, AFC and benefit provisions in effect at termination. Benefit begins at date retirement would have
occurred has member remained in employment.

Duty Disability

No age or service requirement for eligibility. Payable upon the total and permanent disability of a member in the
line of duty. If disability occurs prior to the age of 55, benefit is 50% of AFC. At age 55, benefit is same as Service
Retirement Pension with service credit from date of disability until age 55.

Non-duty Disability

Payable upon the total and permanent disability of a member with 5 or more years of service. Retirement benefits
are calculated as regular retirement.

Duty Death before Retirement

No age of service requirement for eligibility. Upon termination of worker's compensation, a benefit equal to the
worker’'s compensation amount shall be paid to the spouse, unmarried children under 18 and dependent parents.
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PUBLIC SAFETY - CONTINUED

Non-duty Death before Retirement

Members are eligible for benefits with 20 years of service. Retirement benefits are calculated as regular retirement
but actuarially reduced in accordance with a 100% joint and survivor election.

Contributions

Article 9, Section 24 of the State of Michigan constitution requires that financial benefits arising on account of
employee service rendered in each year be funded during that year. Accordingly, the System’s Board of
Trustees retains an independent actuary to determine the annual contribution. The actuarially determined rate
is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by plan members during the year,
with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The actuarially recommended employer
contribution rate for the year ended December 31, 2015, was 0.00% of annual payroll.

Increase (Decrease)
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension

Liability Net Position Liability (Asset)
(a) (b) (a)-(b)

Balances at December 31, 2014 $ 12,838,775 $ 21,672,827 $ (8,834,052)
Service Cost 310,957 - 310,957
Interest on Total Pension Liability 759,667 - 759,667
Difference between expected and actual experience (362,571) - (362,571)
Changes in assumptions 265,250 - 265,250
Employee contributions - 39,001 (39,001)
Net investment income - (522,893) 522,893
Benefit payments, including employee refunds (666,290) (666,290) -0-
Net changes 307,013 (1,150,182) 1,457,195
Balances at December 31, 2015 $ 13,145,788 $ 20,522,645 $ (7,376,857)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability was determined based on the annual actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2015. The
following actuarial assumptions were applied to compute the total pension liability:

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal

Amortization method Level percentage of payroll, open

Remaining amortization period 15 years

Asset valuation method 5 years smoothed market

Inflation 4.00%

Salary increases 8.0%-4.0%, includes inflation

Cost of Living Adjustments None

Investment rate of return 6.0%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation
Mortality rates RP 2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table

-42 -



City of Albion
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2015

NOTE H: RETIREMENT PLANS - CONTINUED

PUBLIC SAFETY - CONTINUED
Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.0%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and
that City Contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution
rates and the member rate. Based on these assumptions, the 6.0% discount rate is the single rate of return that,
when applied to all projected benefit payments, results in an actuarial present value of projected benefit payments
equal to the total of the actuarial present values determined in conformity with GASB Statement 67/68.

Long-Term Expected Return on Plan Assets

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building block method
in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These real rates of return are combined to produce the long-
term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. For each major asset class that is included in the pension plan’s
target asset allocation as of December 31, 2015, these best estimates are summarized in the following table.

Asset Allocation

Asset Class Target Allocation
Cash 5.00%
High Yield and Bank Loans 5.00%
Stocks 60.00%
Bonds 30.00%
Total 100.00%

Sensitivity of the Net Pension (Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the City’s net pension (asset), calculated using the discount rate of 6.0%, as well as what
the City’s net pension (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1% lower (5.0%) or 1%
higher (7.0%) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
Rate 5.0% Rate 6.0% Rate 7.0%
City's net pension (asset) $ (5,744907) $ (7,376,857) $ (8,739,014)
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PUBLIC SAFETY - CONTINUED

Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the employer recognized pension expenses of $83,155. The employer
reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources relate to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments $ 1,443,555 $ -
Change in assumptions 189,464 -
Difference between expected and actual expenditures - 258,979
Total changes in assumptions $ 1,633,019 $ 258,979

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:

Year Ending Pension

December 31, Expense
2016 $ 333,083
2017 333,083
2018 346,986
2019 360,888

NOTE I: RISK MANAGEMENT

The City participates in a pool, the Michigan Municipal League Workers’ Compensation Fund, with other
municipalities for workers’ compensation losses. The pool is organized under Public Act 317 of 1969, as
amended. In the event the pool’s claims and expenses for a policy year exceed the total normal annual
premiums for said years, all members of the specific pool’s policy year may be subject to special assessment to
make up the deficiency. The City has not been informed of any special assessments being required.

The City also participates in a State pool, the Michigan Municipal League Liability and Property Pool, with other
municipalities for property, liability, bonding, and casualty losses. The pool is organized under Public Act 138 of
1982, as amended. In the event the pool’s claims and expenses for a policy year exceed the total normal annual
premiums for said years, all members of the specific pool’s policy year may be subject to special assessment to
make up the deficiency. The City has not been informed of any special assessments being required.
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In addition to providing pension benefits, the City provides certain health care benefits to all full-time employees
upon retirement in accordance with labor contracts and not participants in the Retiree Health Savings Plan.
General employees may become eligible for employer financed health coverage under MERS if they reach the
normal retirement age of 55 with at least 10 years of service while working for the City and a Medicare supplement
payment payable beginning at Medicare eligibility age is based on years of service. Public Safety employees may
become eligible for employer financed health coverage at retirement with 25 or more years of service.

The plan does not issue a separate stand-alone financial statement.

Funding Policy

The City has no obligation to make contributions in advance of when the insurance premiums are due for
payment (i.e., may be financed on a “pay-as-you-go” basis). The only current contributions being made are to
pay the actual current premiums of the retirees. That amount was less than the annual required contribution
and is reflected in the schedule that follows. Administrative costs of the plan are paid for by the City.

Funding Progress

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the City has determined an estimated cost of providing retiree post-
employment benefits through an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2014. The valuation computes an
annual required contribution, which represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to
cover normal cost each year and to cover the amortization of any unfunded actuarial liabilities from the past,
over a period not to exceed 30 years.

The City’s computed contribution and actual funding is summarized as follows:

Annual required contribution (ARC) $ 39,966

Interest on net OPEB Obligation 4,349

Adjustment to annual required contribution (3,284)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 41,031

Amounts contributed:

Payments of current premiums 28,098

Increase in Net OPEB obligation 12,933

OPEB obligation - Beginning of year 72,484

OPEB obligation - End of year $ 85,417

The annual OPEB cost, the percentage contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for the years ended
December 31, were as follows:

2013 2014 2015
Annual OPEB cost $ 45,036 $ 40,905 $ 41,031
Percentage contributed 60 % 68 % 68 %
Net OPEB obligation 59,389 72,484 85,417
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Funding Progress - continued

The current funding progress of the plan as of December 31, 2014, the most recent valuation date, is as follows:

Actuarial value of assets $ 54,932
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) 497,517
Unfunded AAL (UAAL) 442,585
Funded ratio 11 %

NOTE K: CONSTRUCTION CODE FEES

The City oversees building construction, in accordance with the State’s construction code act; including
inspection of building construction and renovation ensure compliance with the building codes. The City charges
fees for these services. Beginning January 1, 2000, the law requires that collection of these fees be used only
for construction code costs, including an allocation of estimated overhead costs. A summary of the activity
since January 1, 2000, is as follows:

Deficit at December 31, 2014 $ (504,423)
Construction code revenue 89,917
Related expenditures - Direct costs (82,924)
Deficit at December 31, 2015 $  (497,430)

NOTE L: CONTINGENCIES

The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has identified the City as one of the potentially responsible parties for
the contamination of a landfill used by the City and has named the City in an action filed in 1997 seeking to recover
the EPA’s past service costs and oversight costs. The parties negotiated settlement calling for the City to make
certain settlement payments and conduct operations and maintenance work jointly with another party. On July 1,
2004, the City made its final installment payment to the EPA. The land operation and maintenance work continues
at the site. The Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) is also seeking to recover response costs
in a related but separate claim filed in March 1999. There have been no recent communications to the City or
judicial enforcement of this claim against the City by MDEQ. Sufficient information is not available at this time for
the City’s legal counsel to form a judgment with respect to the merits, if any, of this claim or the amount or
likelihood of potential loss to the City which might result from this claim.

In November 1997, the MDEQ also notified the City that another property within the City had been identified as
a site of alleged environmental contamination and that the City is the alleged responsible owner of this site.

There have been no recent communications to the City or judicial enforcement of this claim against the City by
MDEQ. Sufficient information is not available at this time for the City’s legal counsel to form a judgment with
respect to the merits, if any, of this claim or the amount or likelihood of potential loss to the City which might
result from this claim.
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City of Albion
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2015

NOTE L: CONTINGENCIES - CONTINUED

In addition, the City has informed the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) of two (2) leaking
underground storage tanks that were in the City’s possession. The City has removed the underground storage
tanks and taken action to limit further contamination caused by the underground storage tanks. Semi-Annual
Groundwater Monitoring Reports are submitted to the MDEQ and a Closure Request is currently pending before
the MDEQ for one (1) of the sites. Sufficient information is not available at this time to determine the amount of
potential losses, if any, to the City which might result from these matters.

There are various other legal actions pending against the City. Due to the inconclusive nature of many of the
actions, it is not possible for legal counsel to determine the probable outcome or a reasonable estimate of the
City’s potential liability, if any. Those various other legal actions for which a reasonable estimate can be
determined of the City's potential liability and that would not be covered by insurance and reserves, if any, are
considered by City management and legal counsel to be immaterial.

NOTE M: DETAILS OF FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS

GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, established fund
balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to
observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in governmental funds. The following are the
five (5) fund balance classifications under this standard.

Nonspendable - assets that are not available in a spendable form such as inventory, prepaid expenditures, and
long-term receivables not expected to be converted to cash in the near term. It also includes funds that are legally
or contractually required to be maintained intact such as the corpus of a permanent fund or foundation.

Restricted - amounts that are required by external parties to be used for a specific purpose. Constraints are
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors or laws, regulations or enabling legislation.

Committed - amounts constrained on use imposed by formal action of the government’s highest level of decision
making authority (i.e., Board, Council, etc.).

Assigned - amounts intended to be used for specific purposes. This is determined by the governing body, the
budget or finance committee or a delegated municipality official.

Unassigned - all other resources; the remaining fund balance after nonspendable, restrictions, commitments, and
assignments. This class only occurs in the General Fund, except for cases of negative fund balances. Negative
fund balances are always reported as unassigned, no matter which fund the deficit occurs in.

Fund Balance Classification Policies and Procedures

For committed fund balance, the City’s highest level of decision-making authority is the City Council. Formal action
that is required to be taken to establish a fund balance commitment is a resolution of the City Council.

For assigned fund balance, the City has not approved a policy indicating who is authorized to assign amounts to a
specific purpose. As a result, this authority is retained with the City Council.

The City has not adopted a policy that defines the order of usage for fund balance amounts classified as restricted,

committed, assigned, or unassigned, therefore restricted resources will be used first, then unrestricted resources if
they are needed.
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NOTE M: DETAILS OF FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS - CONTINUED

Nonmajor
General Albion Solid Sidewalk MDOT Street  Governmental
Fund Trust Waste Program Reconstruction Funds Total
Fund Balances
Nonspendable:
Prepaids $ 226,782 $ -3 - $ - 3 14,904 $ 241,686
Inventory - - 14,400 - 13,979 28,379
Long-term receivable - - - - 426,851 426,851
Perpetual Care - - 215,000 215,000
Restricted for:
Streets and highways - - - 141,105 720,405 861,510
Sidewalks - - 252,064 - - 252,064
Community enrichment - 1,086,150 - - 942,513 2,028,663
Solid Waste - - 39,214 - - 39,214
Law enforcement - - - - - 74,262 74,262
Debt service - - - - - 89,711 89,711
Perpetual Care - - - - 42,691 42,691
Assigned to:
Communications 41,345 - - - - - 41,345
Unassigned: 894,130 - - - - - 894,130

TOTAL FUND BALANCES $ 1,162,257 $ 1,086,150 $ 39,214 $ 266,464 $ 141,105 $ 2,540,316 _$ 5,235,506

NOTE N: UPCOMING ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In March 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. This statement
addresses accounting and financial reporting issues related to fair value measurements. The definition of fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. This statement provides guidance for determining a fair
value measurement for financial reporting purposes. This statement also provides guidance for applying fair
value to certain investments and disclosures related to all fair value measurements. The City is currently
evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial statements when adopted for the 2016 fiscal year.

In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pension and Related
Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB
Statements 67 and 68. The statement establishes requirements for those pensions and pension plans that are
not administered through a trust meeting specified criteria. The City is currently evaluating the impact this
standard will have on the financial statements when adopted during the 2017 fiscal year.

In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other
Than Pension Plans. The statement will establish accounting and financial reporting requirements related to other
postemployment benefit plans and specify the required approach to measuring the OPEB liability of employers.
The statement also enhances accountability and transparency through revised note disclosures and required
supplementary information (RSI). The City is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the
financial statements when adopted. This statement will be effective for the City’s 2017 fiscal year.

In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment
Benefits Other Than Pensions. The statement replaces the requirements of GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting
and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The Statement
requires governments providing other postemployment benefits (OPEB) to recognize their unfunded OPEB
obligations as a liability for the first time, and to more comprehensibly and comparably measure the annual costs of
OPEB benefits. The statement also enhances accountability and transparency through revised note disclosures
and required supplementary information (RSI). The City is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have
on the financial statements when adopted during the 2018 fiscal year.
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NOTE N: UPCOMING ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS - CONTINUED

In August 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures. The statement improves
financial reporting through the disclosure of information about the nature and magnitude of tax abatements that are
not consistently or comprehensively reported to the public at present. The City is currently evaluating the impact
this standard will have on the financial statements when adopted during the City’s 2016 fiscal year.

In January 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units. This
statement improves financial reporting by clarifying the financial statement presentation requirements component
units. The City is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial statements when adopted
during the City’s 2017 fiscal year.

NOTE O: CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, was implemented during the year.
The statement requires governments providing defined benefit pensions to recognize their unfunded (funded)
pension benefit obligation as a liability (asset) for the first time, and to more comprehensively and comparably
measure the annual costs of pension benefits. The statement also enhances accountability and transparency
through revised note disclosures and required supplementary information (RSI).

GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date - An
Amendment of GASB Statement No. 68, was implemented during the year as it is required to be applied
simultaneously with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 68. The statement addresses the issue regarding
the application of the transition provisions of GASB Statement No. 68 and amends paragraph 137 of GASB
Statement No. 68 and requires that, at transition, a government recognize a beginning deferred outflow of
resources for its pension contributions, if any, made subsequent to the measurement date of the beginning net
pension liability (asset).

NOTE P: RESTATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Beginning net position has been restated for governmental activities due to a change in accounting principles and
an understatement of capital assets. Beginning net position has been restated for component unit activities,
Economic Development Corporation, Downtown Development Authority, and Albion Housing Commission due to a
change in accounting principles and an overstatement of capital assets.

Economic Downtown Albion
Governmental Component Development  Development Housing
Activities Units Corporation Authority Commission
Beginning net position $ 10,696,271 $ 4,658,026 $ 42032 $ 188,526 $ 4,196,221
Capital assets 786,074 (32,139) (4,262) (27,877) -
Deferred outflows of contributions - 28,354 - - 28,354
Net pension (liability) asset 10,061,871 (198,318) - - (198,318)

Restated beginning net position $ 21544216 $ 4,455923 $ 37,770  $ 160,649 $ 4,026,257
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City of Albion
General Fund
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

Year Ended December 31, 2015

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes
Property taxes $ 962500 $ 901,000 $ 936,201 $ 35,201
Income taxes 1,002,500 975,000 925,010 (49,990)
Payments in lieu of taxes 5,000 8,000 8,103 103
Penalties and interest 22,500 24,000 30,948 6,948
Administration fees 52,000 47,500 55,914 8,414
Total taxes 2,044,500 1,955,500 1,956,176 676
Licenses and permits 107,100 143,555 155,149 11,594
Intergovernmental
Federal/State 1,067,500 1,091,500 1,069,896 (21,604)
Local - 64,100 66,101 2,001
Total intergovernmental 1,067,500 1,155,600 1,135,997 (19,603)
Charges for services
Cemetery 36,000 36,000 41,975 5,975
Other fees 224,175 199,045 211,780 12,735
Total charges for services 260,175 235,045 253,755 18,710
Fines and forfeits 34,000 34,000 26,618 (7,382)
Interest and rents 6,100 6,100 6,553 453
Other
Reimbursements 74,500 102,903 89,951 (12,952)
Other 14,055 10,450 21,342 10,892
Total other 88,555 113,353 111,293 (2,060)
TOTAL REVENUES 3,607,930 3,643,153 3,645,541 2,388
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City of Albion
General Fund
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - CONTINUED

Year Ended December 31, 2015

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government
City Council $ 34,045 $ 35,129 $ 32,243 $ 2,886
City Manager 74,096 77,231 73,979 3,252
Human resources 34,991 36,720 35,176 1,544
Assessor 50,600 50,570 49,510 1,060
Attorney 96,430 119,500 115,964 3,536
Clerk 103,871 92,636 90,394 2,242
Treasurer 256,949 255,150 225,291 29,859
Municipal building 76,341 73,461 62,364 11,097
Cemetery 160,655 149,888 151,712 (1,824)
Other 61,500 47,600 46,447 1,153
Total general government 949,478 937,885 883,080 54,805
Public safety
Police and fire 1,875,442 1,877,314 1,847,382 29,932
Code enforcement 164,238 182,962 183,672 (710)
Total public safety 2,039,680 2,060,276 2,031,054 29,222
Public works
Engineering 9,755 6,488 5,495 993
Highways and streets 227,690 211,660 220,466 (8,806)
Tree trimming 13,460 12,728 10,424 2,304
Total public works 250,905 230,876 236,385 (5,509)
Health and welfare
Environmental expenditures 15,000 15,000 7,445 7,555
Recreation and cultural
Parks 179,405 251,645 252,854 (1,209)
Other 105,000 110,960 114,432 (3,472)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,539,468 3,606,642 3,525,250 81,392
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 68,462 36,511 120,291 83,780
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City of Albion
General Fund
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - CONTINUED

Year Ended December 31, 2015

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in $ 22,000 $ 22,000 $ 22,000 $ -0-
Transfers out (54,142) (54,142) (53,377) 765
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) (32,142) (32,142) (31,377) 765
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 36,320 4,369 88,914 84,545
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,073,343 1,073,343 1,073,343 -0-
Fund balance, end of year $ 1109663 $ 1,077,712 $ 1,162,257 § 84,545
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City of Albion
Albion Trust Fund
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

Year Ended December 31, 2015

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Interest $ 75,000 $ 33,500 $ 34112  $ 612
EXPENDITURES
Current
Community and economic development 100,000 15,000 10 14,990
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (25,000) 18,500 34,102 15,602
OTHER FINANCING (USES)
Transfer out - (150,000) (150,000) -0-
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (25,000) (131,500) (115,898) 15,602
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,202,048 1,202,048 1,202,048 -0-

Fund balance, end of year

$ 1,177,048 $ 1,070548 $ 1,086,150 § 15,602
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REVENUES
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Interest and rents
Other

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES

Current
Public works

EXCESS OF REVENUES
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING (USES)

Transfer out

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

City of Albion
Solid Waste Fund

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

Year Ended December 31, 2015

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 161500 $ 148264 $ 142367 § (5,897)
- - 6,282 6,282
2,200 1,975 1,576 (399)
5,000 2,630 2,887 257
168,700 152,869 153,112 243
179,215 225,079 210,891 14,188
(10,515) (72,210) (57,779) 14,431
(6,500) (6,500) (6,500) -0-
(17,015) (78,710) (64,279) 14,431
103,493 103,493 103,493 -0-
$ 86,478 $ 24,783  § 39,214  § 14,431
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City of Albion
Primary Government (except Public Safety) and Housing Commission
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE CITY’S NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

Last Measurement Date (Ultimately ten fiscal years will be displayed)

2014

Total Pension Liability

Service cost $ 111,241

Interest 1,027,804

Benefit payments including employee refunds (1,041,700)

Other (3)
Net Change in Total Pension Liability 97,342
Total Pension Liability, beginning 12,923,455
Total Pension Liability, ending $ 13,020,797

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - employer $ 29,258

Net Investment income 863,867
Benefit payments including employee refunds (1,041,700)
Administrative expense (31,504)
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position (180,079)
Plan Fiduciary Net Position, beginning 13,952,956
Plan Fiduciary Net Position, ending $ 13,772,877
Employer Net Pension Liability (Asset) $ (752,080)
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage of the
Total Pension Liability 106%
Covered Employee Payroll $ 1,243,368
Employer's Net Pension Liability as a percentage
of covered employee payroll -60.49%
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City of Albion
Primary Government (except Public Safety) and Housing Commission
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Last Fiscal Year (Ultimately ten fiscal years will be displayed)

2015

Actuarially determined contributions $ 33,038
Contributions in relation to the actuarially

determined contribution 33,038
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ -0-
Covered employee payroll $ 1,231,119
Contributions as a percentage of covered

employee payroll 3%
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City of Albion

Public Safety Officers’ Retirement System

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE CITY’S NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

Last Two Fiscal Years (Ultimately ten fiscal years will be displayed)

CHANGES IN TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY

Service cost

Interest

Differences between expected and actual experience

Changes in assumptions

Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions
NET CHANGE IN TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY
TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY, BEGINNING

TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY, ENDING (A)

CHANGES IN PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

Contributions - member

Net investment income

Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions
NET CHANGE IN PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION, BEGINNING
PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION, ENDING (B)
CITY'S NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET), ENDING (A)-(B)

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total pension liability

Covered employee payroll

City's net pension liability (asset) as a percentage
of covered employee payroll
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2015 2014
$ 310,957 $ 340,366
759,667 728,402
(362,571) 126,170
265,250 -
(666,290) (652,027)
307,013 542,911
12,838,775 12,295,864

$ 13,145,788  $ 12,838,775
$ 39001 $ 56,449
(522,893) 1,769,846
(666,290) (652,027)
(1,150,182) 1,174,268
21,672,827 20,498,559

$ 20,522,645 $ 21,672,827

$ (7,376,857)

$ (8,834,052)

156.12%

$ 1,037,365

-711.11%

168.81%

$ 992,149

-890.40%



Actuarially determined contribution
Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contribution

Contribution excess (deficiency)

Covered-employee payroll
Actuarially determined contributions
as a percentage of covered
employee payroll

City of Albion

Public Safety Officers Retirement System

SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

0%

0%

0%

0%
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0%

0%

0%

0%

0%

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
$ -8 -8 -8 -8 -8 -8 -8 -8 -8 -
$ 0§ 0§ 0 3 0- § 0§ 0§ 0§ 0- § 0§ -0-
$ 1,037,365 $ 992,149 $ 1,048,533 $ 1,055,148 $ 1,162,556 $ 1,222,264 $ 1,341,984 $ 1,381,175 $ 1,270,325 $ 1,237,654

0%



City of Albion
Public Safety Officers Retirement System
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Nominal rate of

Year Ended return on smoothed
December 31, value of assets
2015 7.8%
2014 10.5%
2013 11.7%
2012 3.9%
2011 2.8%
2010 5.4%
2009 5.0%
2008 4.0%
2007 10.8%
2006 8.2%
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City of Albion

SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS AND EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Year Ended December 31, 2015

City Employees - Post-Employment Health Care Benefits

Actuarial
Accrued UAAL as
Actuarial Actuarial Liability a % of
Valuation Value of (AAL) Unfunded Funded Covered Covered
Date Assets Entry Age AAL (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
12/31/2014  § 54932 $ 497517 $ 442,585 1M1 % $ - Not Applicable
12/31/2011 203,242 627,442 424,200 32 % 216,003 196 %
12/31/2008 179,123 539,823 360,700 33 % 1,592,118 23 %

City Employees - Post-Employment Health Care Benefits

Year Ended Annual Percentage

December 31, OPEB Cost Contributed
2015 $ 41,031 68 %
2014 40,905 68 %
2013 45,036 60 %
2012 44,790 69 %
2011 44,306 79 %
2010 40,350 141 %
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City of Albion
NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Year Ended December 31, 2015

NOTE A: SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS AND SCHEDULES OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about the
probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment,
mortality, healthcare cost trends and other factors. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.
The schedules of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the
financial statements, present multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial values of plan assets are
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

The accompanying schedule of employer contributions presents trend information about the amounts
contributed to the plan by the employer in comparison to the Annual Required Contribution (ARC), an amount
that is actuarially determined. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is
projected to cover normal cost for each year and amortized any unfunded actuarial liabilities (of funding excess)
over a period not to exceed thirty years.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the
employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the
historical pattern of sharing benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets consistent with long-term perspective of
the calculations. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuations follows:

Public Safety - Retirement Plan

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal

Amortization method Level percentage of payroll, open
Remaining amortization period 15 years

Asset valuation method 5-year smoothed market

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 6.0%

Projected salary increases (includes inflation at 4.00%) 4.00 - 8.00%
Cost of living adjustments None

Mortality rates RP 2000 combined healthy mortality table

City Employees - Post-Employment Health Care Benefits

Actuarial Valuation:

Frequency Triennial

Latest valuation date 12/31/2015

Actuarial cost method Individual Entry Age
Amortization method Level dollar

Remaining amortization period 30 years

Asset valuation method Market

Actuarial assumptions: Investment rates of return 6.0%
Projected salary increases

Includes inflation at: 4.0%
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City of Albion
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

December 31, 2015

Special Revenue

Community
Maijor Local Recreation Development
Street Street Fund Block Grant
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 252565 $ 49,753 $ 36,322 $ 13,885
Investments - - - -
Accounts receivable 1,330 1,160 - -
Interest receivable - - - 4,026
Taxes receivable - - 2,506 -
Loans receivable - - - 67,796
Due from other governmental units 120,319 62,020 - -
Prepaids 5,082 4,919 835 -
Inventories 12,009 - - -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 391,306 $ 117852 $ 39,663 $ 85,707
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 3190 $ -3 951 §$ -
Accrued liabilities 10,666 3,796 2,249 -
Due to other governmental units - - - -
Unearned revenue - - 4,795 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 13,856 3,796 7,995 -0-
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue 24,570 24,570 - -
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 17,091 4,919 835 67,796
Restricted 335,788 84,567 30,833 17,911
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 352,879 89,486 31,668 85,707
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND FUND BALANCES $ 391305 $ 117852 $ 39,663 $ 85,707
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Debt Service

Funds Funds
Albion Maple Energy 425
Drug Law Building Grove Revolving Generator
Enforcement  Authority  Apartments Loan Bonds
$ 78,787 $ 82372 § 485472 $ 384,461 $ 35410
127 - - - -
- 28,212 - 294,987 -
- 1,388 2,680 - -
- 1,970 - - -
$ 78914 § 113,942 § 488,152 $ 679,448 §$§ 35410
$ 4152 $ 22841 $ 12629 § - $ -
500 - 22,612 230 -
- - - 224 -
4,652 22,841 35,241 454 -0-
- 31,570 2,680 294,987 -
74,262 59,531 450,231 384,007 35,410
74,262 91,101 452,911 678,994 35,410
$ 78914 § 113942 § 488,152 § 679,448 $ 35,410
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City of Albion
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - CONTINUED

December 31, 2015

Debt Service
DPW
111 Center Building G.0. Water 201 N. Clinton
Street Debt Debt Bonds Debt
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ -3 205 $ 21342 $ -
Investments - - - -
Accounts receivable - - 2,762 -
Interest receivable - - - -
Taxes receivable - - 8,328 -
Loans receivable - - - -
Due from other governmental units - - 2,683 -
Prepaids - - - -
Inventories - - - -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 0- $ 295 $ 35115 § -0-
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ -3 - $ - $ -
Accrued liabilities - - - -
Due to other governmental units - - - -
Unearned revenue - - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES -0- -0- -0- -0-
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - - 2,809 -
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable - - - -
Restricted - 295 32,306 -
TOTAL FUND BALANCES -0- 295 32,306 -0-
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND FUND BALANCES $ -0- §$ 295 $ 35115 § -0-
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Capital Projects Permanent
Funds Fund Fund Total
Nonmajor
ABA Street Cemetery Governmental
Bonds Improvement Trust Funds
$ 21,700 $ 295,037 $ 64,467 $ 1,821,868
- - 199,955 199,955
- - - 5,379
- - - 4,026
- 15,393 - 26,227
- - - 390,995
- - 35,856 220,878
- - - 14,904
- - - 13,979
$ 21,700 $ 310,430 $ 300,278 $ 2,698,211
$ - % - S - § 43763
- - - 40,053
- - 6,731 6,955
- - - 4,795
-0- -0- 6,731 95,566
- 10,380 - 62,329
- - 250,856 670,734
21,700 300,050 42,691 1,869,582
21,700 300,050 293,547 2,540,316
$ 21,700 $ 310,430 $ 300,278 $ 2,698,211
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City of Albion

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Year Ended December 31, 2015

REVENUES
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Interest and rents
Other

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Current
Public safety
Public works
Community and economic development
Recreation and cultural
Other

Debt service
Principal
Interest and fiscal fees

Capital outlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in

Transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

Special Revenue

Community

Major Local Recreation Development
Street Street Fund Block Grant

$ - $ - $ 123370 $ -
589,439 203,015 15,036 -
9,315 - 12,247 -
1,132 209 1,430 76
4,388 2,693 7,405 -
604,274 205,917 159,488 76
381,198 296,532 - -

- - 129,472 -

- - - 87,320

381,198 296,532 129,472 87,320
223,076 (90,615) 30,016 (87,244)

- 110,000 - -
(113,000) (3,000) - -
(113,000) 107,000 -0- -0-
110,076 16,385 30,016 (87,244)
242,803 73,101 1,652 172,951
$ 352879 $ 89486 $ 31668 $ 85707
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Debt Service

Funds Funds
Albion Maple Energy 425
Drug Law Building Grove Revolving Generator
Enforcement  Authority ~ Apartments Loan Bonds
$ -3 - S -3 -3 -
- 17,604 210,882 - -
49,433 - - - -
- 57,829 224,540 14,774 -
72,442 67,159 6,844 - -
121,875 142,592 442,266 14,774 -0-
75,019 - - - -
- 276,123 262,019 9,570 -
- - - - 120,000
- - - - 62,950
4,665 - 2,526 - -
79,684 276,123 264,545 9,570 182,950
42,191 (133,531) 177,721 5,204 (182,950)
- 150,000 - - 185,644
- (10,209) (64,200) - -
-0- 139,791 (64,200) -0- 185,644
42,191 6,260 113,521 5,204 2,694
32,071 84,841 339,390 673,790 32,716
$ 74262 $ 91,101 $ 452911 $ 678,994 § 35,410
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City of Albion

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED

Year Ended December 31, 2015

REVENUES
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Interest and rents
Other

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Current
Public safety
Public works
Community and economic development
Recreation and cultural
Other

Debt service
Principal
Interest and fiscal fees

Capital outlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in

Transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

Debt Service

DPW

111 Center Building G.O. Water 201 N. Clinton

Street Debt Debt Bonds Debt
$ - % - $ 131,580 $ -
- - 6,610 -
- - 11,185 -
-0- -0- 149,375 -0-
4,455 11,705 130,000 8,704
101 3,295 8,322 263
4,556 15,000 138,322 8,967
(4,556) (15,000) 11,053 (8,967)
1,372 15,000 - 8,837
1,372 15,000 -0- 8,837
(3,184) -0- 11,053 (130)
3,184 295 21,253 130
$ -0- § 295 $§ 32306 $ -0-
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Capital Project Permanent

Funds Fund Fund Total
Nonmajor
ABA Street Cemetery  Governmental

Bonds Improvement Trust Funds
$ - 9 239,711 $ - $ 494,661
- 9,423 - 1,052,009
- - - 32,747
- - - 49,433
- - 3,375 303,365
24,354 - - 185,285
24,354 249,134 3,375 2,117,500
- - - 75,019
- - - 677,730
- - - 547,712
- - - 129,472
- - - 87,320
80,000 - - 354,864
48,077 - - 123,008
- 5,067 - 12,258
128,077 5,067 -0- 2,007,383
(103,723) 244,067 3,375 110,117
106,937 - - 577,790
- (218,646) (17,000) (426,055)
106,937 (218,646) (17,000) 151,735
3,214 25,421 (13,625) 261,852
18,486 274,629 307,172 2,278,464
$ 21,700 $ 300,050 $ 293,547 $ 2,540,316
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City of Albion
Agency Funds
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

December 31, 2015

Trust and Current Tax
Agency Collections Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 149,068 $ 678,159 $ 827,227
LIABILITIES
Due to County $ - $ 10,044 $ 10,044
Due to State 341 15,757 16,098
Due to schools - 8,439 8,439
Due to others 148,727 643,919 792,646
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 149,068 $ 678,159 $ 827,227
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City of Albion

Pension and Employee Benefit Trust Funds

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

December 31, 2015

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Interest receivable

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES

NET POSITION
Held in trust for pension and employee benefits

Public Safety

Officers' Retiree

Pension Health Care Total
$ 437,011 $ 50,363 $ 487,374
20,011,610 - 20,011,610
74,024 - 74,024
20,522,645 50,363 20,573,008
- - -0-
$ 20,522,645 $ 50,363 $ 20,573,008
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City of Albion

Pension and Employee Benefit Trust Funds

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

ADDITIONS
Investment income
Net investment income
Contributions - employee
TOTAL ADDITIONS

DEDUCTIONS
Benefit payments

CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

Year Ended December 31, 2015

Public Safety

Officers' Retiree

Pension Health Care Total
$ (522,893) §$ 201 $ (522,692)
39,001 - 39,001
(483,892) 201 (483,691)
666,290 4,806 671,096
(1,150,182) (4,605) (1,154,787)
21,672,827 54,968 21,727,795
$ 20,522,645 $ 50,363 $ 20,573,008
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City of Albion
Component Unit Funds
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

December 31, 2015

Special
Revenue
Economic Business
Development Incubator Total
ASSETS
Cash $ 18,413 $ 13,207 $ 31,620
Accounts receivable 21 2,295 2,316
Due from other governmental units - 85,129 85,129
TOTAL ASSETS $ 18,434 $ 100,631 $ 119,065
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 1,011 $ 8,617 $ 9,628
Accrued liabilities 1,734 724 2,458
Due to other governmental units - 35,856 35,856
Unearned revenue 768 28,514 29,282
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,513 73,711 77,224
FUND BALANCES
Restricted 14,921 26,920 41,841
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 14,921 26,920 41,841
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 18,434 $ 100,631 $ 119,065
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City of Albion
Component Unit Funds

RECONCILIATION OF THE COMBINING BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT
OF NET POSITION - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

December 31, 2015

Total fund balances - governmental funds $ 41,841
Amounts reported for the governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported as assets in the governmental funds.

The cost of capital assets is $ 46,655
Accumulated depreciation is (9,600)
Capital assets, net 37,055

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet.
Long-term liabilities at year-end consist of:

ABA loan (28,212)
Accrued interest payable (1,372)
(29,584)
Net position of governmental activities $ 49,312
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City of Albion

Component Unit Funds

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Year Ended December 31, 2015

Special
Revenue
Economic Business
Development Incubator Total
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ 59,431 $ 199,906 $ 259,337
Charges for services - 3,833 3,833
Interest and rents 79,262 35,673 114,935
Other 21 11,080 11,101
TOTAL REVENUES 138,714 250,492 389,206
EXPENDITURES
Current
Community and economic development 121,020 248,895 369,915
Debt service
Principal 3,877 - 3,877
Interest and fiscal fees 1,604 - 1,604
Capital outlay 5,532 - 5,532
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 132,033 248,895 380,928
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 6,681 1,597 8,278
Fund balances, beginning of year 8,240 25,323 33,563
Fund balances, end of year $ 14,921 $ 26,920 $ 41,841
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City of Albion
Component Unit Funds
RECONCILIATION OF THE COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Year Ended December 31, 2015

Net change in fund balances - governmental funds $ 8,278
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of capital assets is allocated over their estimated useful
lives as depreciation expense. In the current period, these amounts are:
Depreciation expense (800)
Repayment of long-term debt is reported as expenditures in governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. In the current
year, these amounts consist of:
ABA loan payments 3,877
Some items reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
These activities consist of:

Decrease in accrued interest payable 187

Change in net position of governmental activities $ 11,542
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City of Albion
Component Unit Funds
BALANCE SHEET - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

December 31, 2015

ASSETS
Cash $ 18,329
Taxes receivable 767
Due from other governmental units 13,438
Prepaids 627
TOTAL ASSETS $ 33,161
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 1,000
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 627
Unassigned 31,534
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 32,161
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 33,161
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City of Albion
Component Unit Funds

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF
NET POSITION - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

December 31, 2015

Total fund balance - governmental fund $ 32,161
Amounts reported for the governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported as assets in the governmental funds.

The cost of capital assets is: $ 619,082

Accumulated depreciation is: (563,332)

Capital assets, net 55,750
Net position of governmental activities $ 87,911
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City of Albion
Component Unit Funds

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

Year Ended December 31, 2015

REVENUES
Taxes $ 15,732
Interest 250
TOTAL REVENUES 15,982

EXPENDITURES

Current
Community and economic development 32,971
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (16,989)
Fund balance, beginning of year 49,150
Fund balance, end of year $ 32,161
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City of Albion
Component Unit Funds
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT
OF ACTIVITIES - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

Year Ended December 31, 2015

Net change in fund balance - governmental fund $ (16,989)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in the governmental fund. However, in the

statement of activities, the cost of capital assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives
as depreciation expense. In the current period, these amounts are:

Depreciation expense (55,749)
Change in net position of governmental activities $ (72,738)
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City of Albion
Component Unit Funds
BALANCE SHEET - TAX INCREMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY

December 31, 2015

ASSETS
Cash $ 68,735
Accounts receivable 44
Interest receivable 538
Taxes receivable 88,799
TOTAL ASSETS $ 158,116
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 82
Accrued liabilities 5,770
TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,852

FUND BALANCE
Unassigned 152,264

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 158,116
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City of Albion
Component Unit Funds

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT
OF NET POSITION - TAX INCREMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY

December 31, 2015

Total fund balance - governmental fund $ 152,264
Amounts reported for the governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported as assets in the governmental fund.

The cost of capital assets is: 160,000
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and

therefore are not reported in the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet.
Long-term liabilities at year-end consist of:

Compensated absences (24,553)
Net position of governmental activities $ 287,711
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City of Albion
Component Unit Funds

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - TAX INCREMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY

Year Ended December 31, 2015
REVENUES
Taxes
Interest
Other
TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Current
Community and economic development
Debt service
Interest and fiscal fees
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year
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316
1,670

226,956

165,194

196

165,390

61,566

90,698
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City of Albion
Component Unit Funds
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES - TAX INCREMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY

Year Ended December 31, 2015

Net change in fund balance - governmental fund $ 61,566
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Some items reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial

resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in the governmental fund. These
activities consist of:

(Increase) in accrued compensated absences (5,102)
Change in net position of governmental activities $ 56,464
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Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Albion, Michigan

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of City of Albion, Michigan (the City), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated June 14, 2016. Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the
financial statements of Albion Housing Commission, as described in our report on the City’s financial statements.
This report does not include the results of the other auditor’s testing of internal control over financial reporting and
on compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or,
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

Auburn Hills = East Lansing = Grand Rapids = St. Johns
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance and other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

%:’%A(,

ABRAHAM & GAFFNEY, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

June 14, 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Albion, Michigan

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of City of Albion, Michigan (the City), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated June 14, 2016. Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the
financial statements of Albion Housing Commission, as described in our report on the City’s financial statements.
This report does not include the results of the other auditor’s testing of internal control over financial reporting and
on compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance and other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use management, members of the City Council, and
others within the entity, and applicable departments of the State of Michigan and is not intended to be, and should
not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

m"!%pf.

ABRAHAM & GAFFNEY, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

June 14, 2016
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CITY OF ALBION
Office of the City Manager
Sheryl L. Mitchell

112 West Cass Street ¢ Albion, Ml 49224
517.629.7172 + smitchell@cityofalbionmi.gov

MEMO

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FR:  Sheryl L. Mitchell, City Manager

DA: June 20, 2016

RE:  Agenda Items

IX. A. Request Approval for 2016 Clean-up for Saturday, July 23, 2016

The residential clean-up is scheduled for Saturday, July 23, 2016, from 9am-3pm at Ketchum Field
and Harris Field. There is also the Latex Paint Recycling occurring at Ketchum Field from 9am to
1pm. The cost is 50 cents/gallon or $2 for a 5 gallon pail of paint. The scrap tire collection will be
held at the intersection of North Clark Street and East North Street, Albion. Tire collection will
occur from 9 am to 3 pm. Tires can be dropped off in the designated area in the parking lot
beginning Wednesday July 20. Collection ends by 3 pm on July 23.

IX. B. Request Approval Resolution #2016-36 To Set 2016 Tax Levy

Annual resolution to approve the level of funding for the General Operating Fund. The ad valorem
taxable value of real and personal property as determined by the City Assessor is $80,723,907. A
public hearing is required.

General Fund
Operations

Solid Waste
Debt Service for
GO Bonds

Street Improvements
Recreation

W

i

FY 2015

1,100,147.38
183,758.84

139,647.36
275,640.69
137,816.11

FY 2016

966,555.77
242,171.72

127,543.77
242,171.72
121,085.86

Change

$(133,591.61)
S 58,412.88

$ (12,103.59)
S (33,468.97)
$ (16,730.25)

Millage
rate

11.9736
3.0000

1.5800
3.0000
1.5000

(increase from 2 mills)

(increase from 1.5200 mills



IX. C. Request Approval Resolution #2016-38, Resolution Approving Application of Team One
Plastics, Inc., for Industrial Facilities Tax Exemption Certificate for a New Facility and
Approval of Agreement

The applicant, Team One Plastics, has requested an Industrial Facilities Tax (IFT) Exemption under
Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended. The project consisted of $340,990 in building improvements
and $664,862 in machinery, equipment, furniture, etc. The total project cost is just over
$1 million. The request is for 12 years. Council may determine if they are going to grant the
abatement and the period of time for the abatement.

Team One Plastic’s most recent IFT Abatement request was in January 2012 (later amended in
2014). The request in 2012 indicated that the current number of employees was 31, with a
projected increase of 23, resulting in a total number of employees of 54. The current application
indicates that there are 75 jobs that will be retained or projected to be created. There are two
existing IFT abatements for Team One Plastics for Personal Property expiring in 2016 and 2023.

The recommended benchmark for real and personal property exemptions from ad valorem taxes
is 5%. According to the Assessor, the current ratio in Albion is 2.29%. And with the granting of
this application, the ratio will increase to 3.23%.

There is a provision in the City of Albion Guidelines that stipulates that the company must make
“substantial progress towards employment goals as stated in the application and as presented
by company officials shall be achieved each year. Failure to meet employment goals in proportion
to total planned employment or the business plan over the duration of the certificate may result
in a request for revocation of the certificate by City Council.”

The Guidelines used by the City Council and EDC are quite outdated. It is strongly recommended
that the point system for determining the years of exemption be re-evaluated. Particularly,
relative to the cost of the project, which has not been revised in approximately 20 years.

IX. D. Request Approval Resolution #2016-41, To Approve Memorandum of Understanding
with Albion College for the River Trail Expansion Project

The resolution approves the agreement between the City and Albion and Albion College relative
to the Albion River Trail Expansion Project. This relates to the Michigan DNR Trust Fund Grant of
$294,000. The College will be contributing most of the local match and contracting for the
project. A resolution will be coming to Council shortly, as soon as the easements are finalized.

IX. E. Request Approval Assessing Contract with the City of Marshall

The City of Albion and City of Marshall entered into a Cooperative Agreement for Assessing
Services in 2014. For the initial 9 months, the costs was $36,000. The City receives the services
of two Assessor for 2.5 days per week. The shared costs are 30% Albion and 70% Marshall. The
12 month agreement for 2015/6 was $49,465. The current 2016/7 agreement is for $45,650.00.



IX. F. Request Approval of the Mutual Aid Agreement with Eaton Rapids

The Mutual Aid Agreement is an intergovernmental agreement between the City of Albion and
the City of Eaton Rapids. Once adopted, the agreement remains in force until terminated by
either party with 30 days’ notice.

IX. G. Request Approval Annual Audit from Abraham & Gaffney

The audit is for there year ending December 31, 2015. The General Fund balance had an increase
of $88,914 from the fund balance of December 31, 2014. The audit did not identify and
deficiencies in internal controls that would be considered a material weakness.
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HOUSING COMMUNITY
WORKSHOP
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Join your neighbors to discuss housing opportunities and
neighborhoods in Albion!
The Planning Commission is currently updating the Comprehensive Plan and is in need

of input from the community to create a meaningful and dynamic document that will be
used to guide the City’s decision-making.

- The purpose of this workshop is to identify priority sites for redevelopment and
to discuss the community’s vision for its neighborhoods.
- Guest speakers will be at the workshop to present:
* Housing Target Market Analysis
= Current residential developments in the City
= Resources that are available to residents and developers for
investing in their properties.

Join us to find out more about what is going on in Albion and what we can doas a
community to influence the future of Albion!

This event is free and open to the public. Light refreshments will be served.

June 29, 2016 6:00 pm —7:00 pm

Caring Community Wesleyan Church
1015 Irwin Ave. Albion, M1 49224

Questions or comments? Please contact Danielle Nelson, Special Projects Manager, at:
(517) 629-7178 or dnelson@cityofalbionmi.gov

CITY OF ALBION

OEAN
4& 9 112 W. Cass St. Albion, MI 49224
U? ALBION 2isumie
X Q:i" (517) 629-7178 | dnelson@cityofalbionmi.gov | www.cityofalbionmi.gov




CITY OF ALBION

2016 RESIDENTIAL CLEAN-UP
SATURDAY, JULY 23, 2016

9am. -3 p.m.

LOCATIONS FOR DISPOSAL

1. Ketchum Field - corner of North Street and N. Clark Street.
2. Harris Field - corner of W. Cass Street and Gale Street.

PROOF OF CITY RESIDENCY REQUIRED
ACCEPTABLE ITEMS:

o Appliances Certified Freon Rentoved. Doors must be removed.

e Latex Paint - must be made solid with sand or cat litter.

e Furniture.

¢ Loose trash must be boxed or in clear plastic bags.

¢ Limited to what two people can lift.

¢ A limuted amount of building or demolition material.

e Material must be boxed or bundled with size no larger than 4 feet by 3 feet
by 2 feet.

¢ Tires without rims or wheels - Ketchum Field Location Only. Limited to
a maximum of 7 tires per load.

o No tractor tires, loader tires, semi or monster truck tires.
e FElectronics — Ketchon Field Location Only,

UNACCEPTABLE ITEMS:

» Liquids or Hazardous Materials; including oil based paint
o Batteries, car parts or heavy iron

» Rocks, sand, concrete, rubble or dead animals

¢ Appliances containing Freon

¢ Garbage

» Brush, stumps, grass or leaves

» Large amount of Building or Demolition Materials

¢ Industrial or Commercial waste

* Loose trash.




Latex Paint Recycling Day
July 23, 2016
9a.m.to1 p.m.
Ketchum Field

COST:

50 cents/gallon
5 gallon pails/$2

No other types of paints, varnishes

or stains accepted.
For more information,

call 51 7-41 4 61 42

This event is made possible by:

SCY & /1})

Q—

e
Jackso™

The City of

Albion * o8
ALBION

COMMUNITY FOUNDATION
For good. For ever.”




PARCEL # COMPANY ADDRESS CERT # START END TYPE APPROVED 2016 AV

51-950-463-05 DECKER NUT MFG 703 N CLARK ST 2005-463 2006 2017 PERSONAL 657,309 36,200
51-900-083-09 DECKER NUT MFG 703 N CLARK ST 2009-083 2010 2018 REAL 274,294 70,400
51-950-083-09 DECKER NUT MFG 703 N CLARK ST 2009-083 2010 2018 PERSONAL 54,838 5,000
51-900-150-05 KNAUF INSULATION GMBH 1000 E NORTH ST~ 2005-150 2006 2017 REAL 5,000,000 1,896,800
51-900-033-12 TEAM ONE PLASTICS, INC 927 ELLIOT 2012-033 2013 2023 PERSONAL 1,841,556 155,400
51-950-070-05 TEAM ONE PLASTICS, INC 927 ELLIOT 2005-070 2006 2016 PERSONAL 513,719 78,600
51-950-561-00 GEORGIA PACIFIC CORRUGATED LLC 916 BURSTEIN DR~ 2000-561 2001  2015* PERSONAL* 8,085,000 41,100

* PP [FTs for mfg do not expire due to new eligible manufacturing exemptions

Albion Industrial Facility Tax (IFT) - Current Tax Abatement

produced by Julie Cain-Derouin, Assessor
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